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Dr Blade Nzimande
Minister of Higher Education and Training

The Republic of South Africa

Mr Mduduzi Manana
Deputy Minister of Higher Education and Training

The Republic of South Africa

Ms Jennifer J. Irish-Qhobosheane
Administrator 

SASSETA 
Safety and Security Sector Education and Training Authority 

Honourable Minister it is my pleasure and privilege to present to you the 
Annual Report of the SASSETA for the financial year ended 31 March 2015 

Ms Manana Moroka
Chief Executive Officer 

SASSETA 
Safety and Security Sector Education and Training Authority 

Honourable Minister I have pleasure in presenting the Annual report of 
the SASSETA for the financial year ended 31 March 2015
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ADMINISTRATOR’S
FOREWORD

Six weeks before the end of the 2014/15 financial 
year SASSETA was placed under administration 
(Notice placed in the Government Gazette No 
38466 12 February 2015). The Minister and Di-
rector General took this decision based on the 
overall performance of SASSETA, irregularities 
identified, and non-compliance with the Skills-
Development Act, 1998 (Act 97, 1998) and other 
relevant legislation. 

As the Administrator, I took up office in the last 
week of February 2015 and, as a result of the 
period remaining before the end of the 2014/15 
financial year, many of the measures being im-
plemented as part of the administration process 
will only take effect in the 2015/16 financial year.

While SASSETA received an unqualified audit for 
the 2014/15 financial year, the organisational perfor-
mance and financial standing did not show any im-
provement from the 2013/14 financial period. In fact, 
the matters of emphasis raised by the Auditor-Gen-
eral, indicates that SASSETA regressed significantly 
during the year under review. 

The low level of performance within SASSETA con-
tradicts the financial expenditure within the body. 
Although the organisation’s performance was below 
50 percent, the SASSETA overspent and will have to 
carry this deficit forward into 2015/16 as a substan-
tial over commitment. This has resulted in SASSETA 
needing to implement severe cost cutting measures 
going into the 2015/16 financial year.

SASSETA  ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015 8
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ADMINISTRATOR’S      

In addressing the problems facing SASSETA 
a number of interventions have been implemented 
and these measures should yield more positive 
results during the 2015/16 year: 

 
 

 

 

One of the key challenges facing SASSETA in 
2014/15 was the management and implementation 
of SASSETA’s Discretionary Grant funding. 
To address these challenges, SASSETA implement-
ed systems and processes that not only links expen-
diture and the areas identified in the Skills Sector 
Plan to projects being approved, but also promotes 
compliance of the Discretionary Grant training and 
learning interventions with the requirements of the 
Skills  Development Act and the PFMA.  

An organisational review currently under way will 
implement higher levels of employee and 
management accountability through clear definition 
of roles and responsibilities. This, together with the
 implementation of more effective governance 
systems and structures, will identify the areas of 
poor governance within SASSETA. 

The planning and implementation processes 
within SASSETA must now centre on increasing the 
impact of the implementation of the Skills 
Development Act within the Safety and Security 
Sector, and the alignment of its operations to the 
National Development Plan. This will position the 
body as a primary contributor to a safer 
environment and an active citizenry.

While the body received an unqualified audit for 
2014/15,the number of management findings 
increased significantly from the number identified in 
2013/14. The focus going forward of the administra-
tion process and, by definition, all employees must 
be on SASSETA moving towards a clean audit. 

MS JENNIFER J. IRISH-QHOBOSHEANE
SASSETA Administrator 
29 July 2015

FOREWORD

An overhaul of the planning systems within 
SASSETA, including the review of the 
Strategic and Annual Business Plans and the 
Sector Skill Plan (with the former also being 
accompanied by clear operational plans to 
ensure effective implementation of targets 
set), a Service Delivery Improvement plan 
and alignment of performance planning with 
the Service Level Agreement signed between 
SASSETA and the Department of Higher 
Education and Trainning. Importantly this pro-
cess also links the budget of the body to the 
planning process and the development of a 
more sustainable financial model going for-
ward.

An overhaul of the performance management 
system that will ensure that employees’, and 
in particular, senior management’s 
performance agreements are linked to the 
actual performance objectives of the body 
and can be accurately monitored and 
addressed. In addition, the development of 
clear core management competencies are 
able to be measured within the new 
performance agreements.

The implementation of effective financial and 
supply chain systems, processes and 
procedures that will guarantee greater 
compliance with the PFMA and will result in 
more accurate monitoring of spending 
patterns and budget implementation. 
Measures have also been put in place to 
address irregular, fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure which include not only the 
cancellation of contracts, but also directs 
disciplinary action against employees 
involved in the processes resulting in the 
irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure.

The implementation of an effective asset 
management system within SASSETA. 
 

The implementation of an effective Monitoring 
and Evaluation framework to track organisa-
tional performance and facilitate better contrac 
monitoring and evaluation processes. 

A turnaround strategy aimed at addressing the 
backlog in the issuing of certificates to learn-
ers within the Safety and Security Sector.

The integration of Information and Technology 
systems to ensure that IT is properly managed 
and is able to contribute to effective planning, 
implementation and monitoring processes with-
in the body.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
OFFICER’S

OVERVIEW

Economic Viability
 
During the year under review the expenditure 
incurred by SASSETA was in excess of the avail-
able resources due to the inadequate financial 
controls over the 2014/15 project allocations 
and appriovals. In addition the non-receipt of 
government departmental levies added to the  
over-committment. This will be addressed in the 
2015/16 financial year.

Herewith are details of the financial overview of 
the entity:

Revenue

Total revenue grew 3 percent from the previous fi-
nancial year. The total amount received in the current 
financial year amounted to R309,03 million (2013/14: 
R299,6 million). Included in this total revenue is an 
amount of R299 million(2013/14: R288, 9 million) re-
ceived from the skills development levies. The skills 
development levies consists of amounts received di-
rectly from the Executive Authority, from the national 
departments and other stakeholders within the secu-
rity and safety environment.

GENERAL FINANCIAL REVIEW OF THE ORGANISATION

SASSETA  ANNUAL REPORT 2015 10
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The investment income generated by the monies 
held in the call accounts (immediate call notice)  
reduced by 6%, from R10,3 million in the previ-
ous financial year to an amount of R9,7 million 
in the current year. The reduction is due to low-
er cash reserves maintained by the entity in the 
year under review

Total expenditure for the year increased by 94 
percent compared to the previous financial year. 
In terms of the administration expenditure, the 
expenditure was consistent to that of the pre-
vious financial year. The increment in the total 
expenditure was mainly due to over-spending on 
discretionary grants as a result of the over-com-
mitment evidenced at year end. 

The entity applied to budget for a deficit in the 
current financial year to which approval was ob-
tained from the National Treasury through the 
Executive Authority. The budgeted deficit was for 
R15 million however the entity ended with a defi-
cit of R174, 6 million. This depicted a decrease 
of 440 percent as the entity had concluded the 
previous financial year with a net surplus of R51, 
3 million. The net deficit is directly linked to the 
over-commitment balance.

The entity’s main asset is its cash reserves. As 
at year end, SASSETA held R124,8 million as 
opposed to R275,1 million that was held in the 
previous financial year. The discretionary grants 
expenditure was significantly in excess of the 
budgeted amount and resulted in this reduction 
of the cash balance. The decline from the previ-
ous financial year is 55 percent.

The entity does not have any long-term finan-
cial obligations due to its license expiring on 31 
March 2016. All the liabilities have been limited 
to this date. Discretionary grants projects, as in-
cluded in the commitments balance of R372, 5 
million, may be committed post this date due to 
the nature of the training and programmes, such 
as bursaries, learnerships and artisans which are 
multi-year in nature.

Included in short-term liabilities are amounts ow-
ing to service providers and, in some instances, 
to staff members. This relates to trade and other 
payables as disclosed in the Statement of Finan-
cial Position. The amount due as at 31 March 
2015 is R41, 1 million compared to R22, 1 million 
in the previous financial year resulting in an 86% 
increment. This was mainly due to high activity in 
the discretionary grants projects which were not 
yet paid over to the training providers as at 31 

March 2015. A substantial amount out of this balance 
has since been settled after year in-line with the 30 
days requirement per the National Treasury Regula-
tions.

This balance includes the current year’s net surplus/
deficit as disclosed in the Statement of Financial Per-
formance. It is an accumulation of the surpluses/def-
cits over the current year including all previous finan-
cial years since inception of the entity.

The accumulated reserves decreased by 67% from 
the previous financial year. The balance as at 31 
March 2015 amounted to R79,7 million (2013/14: 
R255,5 million). This was as a result of excessive 
spending on discretionary grants projects in line with 
the contracts concluded in the current financial year 
which led to the over-commitment.

The entity utilises the levies received and income 
generated in terms of the Skills Development Levies 
Act.

The entity has been negatively impacted due to the
implementation of the DPSA directive, per circular No. 
HRD 1 of 2013 which directs that the levies received 
directly from the departments should be utilised as 
follows:

-   One-third  for administration, and
-   Two-thirds for the implementation of projects.

Below is the impact of the above on both the adminis-
tration expenditure and the employer grants and proj-
ects expenditure: 

This has affected the spending trends of the entity as, 
contrary to the previous financial years when, 
SASSETA was allowed to utilise all its funds for ad-
ministration purposes. The funds received which are 
affected by this directive in the current financial year 
are R76, 95 million (2013/14: R69, 4 million).

The impact of the above is as follows:

   

    For the current financial year, only R25,7 million of 
the R76,95 million, was available for administration 
and, the balance of R51, 4 million, was allocated to 
the funding of discretionary grants projects.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE  OFFICER’S OVERVIEW

Expenditure

Accumulated Reserves

Net Surplus/Deficit

Assets

Spending trends of the public entity 

Liabilities

Administration Expenditure

The total amount of R69,4 million as received in the      
previous financial year, was utilised for 
administration; and

For the current financial year, only R25,7 million of 
the R76,95 million, was available for administration 
and, the balance of R51, 4 million, was allocated to 
the funding of discretionary grants projects.
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Had the circumstances remained unchanged,the 
R51, 3 million would have been available for ad-
ministration.

The total administration expenditure incurred for 
the year was R77, 99 million (2013/14: R78, 1 
million). Due to implementation of the directive, 
the available administration funds were only R53, 
8 million against an expenditure of R77, 9 million. 
This has lead to excess spending onadministra-
tion as disclosed in note 1. The excess amount is 
disclosed as irregular expenditure per note 18.1.

Employer grants were paid back to the employers 
per the requirements of the Skills Development 
Act. 

Regarding Projects Expenditure which is referred 
to as Discretionary Grants Expenditure, the final 
budget was for an amount of R176, 6 million with 
an actual expenditure of R367, 9 million calculat-
ing to a 108 percent variance. 

During the year under review SASSETA had 
a number of vacancies at management level.  
These included the post of the Heads of Supply 
Chain Management, Finance, Information Tech-
nology, Skills Planning, Research and Reporting, 
and Board Secretariat. Some of these posts were 
filled during the mid to the latter part of the finan-
cial year. However, during the same period, there 
were a number of resignations namely Senior 
Manager:Corporate Services, Board Secretariat 
and Heads of Departments Supply Chain Man-
agement and Information Technology. Additional 
pressure was added in the form of instability of 
the CEO’s office which affected the operations of 
the organisation.

The absence of the Board Secretariat meant that 
the Board could not function effectively. In order 
to remedy the situation, SASSETA appointed a 
temporary Board Secretariat. The departure of 
the Senior Manager Corporate Services and HOD 
Supply Chain Management meant that the SETA 
had to appoint employees in acting positions, 
which had a ripple effect throughout the organi-
sation.    

There were also a number of other acting posi-
tions that were made to stabilise the organisa-
tion.  At the start of quarter four at the 2013/14 
financial year. The Board dismissed the CEO and 
suspended the HODs Learning Programmes and 
Finance. The SETA appointed employees to act 
in the positions of CEO and HOD Finance. How-
ever, the HOD Learning Programme post was 
not filled as the SETA had considered merging 
the posts of Learning Programmes with Projects 

due to duplication of responsibilities. In addition the 
position of Facilities Manager was created but not 
filled prior to the administrative process.The CEO 
was however re-instated in October 2014 as per the 
CCMA ruling that she was procedurally and substan-
tively unfairly dismissed.

One of the key challenges that faced the SETA as 
a result of these capacity issues was poor manage-
ment of projects as well as the monitoring and eval-
uation thereof. As a result the over-committed on 
projects which, among other issues, included poor 
governance, led to the SETA being placed under ad-
ministration.

The Firearm qualification No. 50480 was removed 
from SASSETA by the QCTO.

 
The post of the Chief Operations Officer was filled 
and SASSETA introduced the function of Human Re-
source Strategic Support during the year under re-
view. The Monitoring and Evaluation framework was 
approved and was about to be implemented when 
the SETA was placed under administration; this is 
now an area that the Administator will evaluate. 

SASSETA concluded the year with its commitments 
balance exceeding its accumulated reserves which 
resulted in the entity being over-committed. Ef-
fectively, there were no surplus funds to be rolled 
over to the subsequent financial year due to the 
over-commitments. 

The Supply Chain Management unit faced numerous 
challenges. The main issue identified was the num-
ber of non-compliance matters due to the over-reli-
ance on single sourcing of contracts and the suppli-
er database management system. In addition there 
were deviations where it could have been avoided 
due to poor management of contracts.

Some of these challenges stem from the previous 
financial years and continued in the current financial 
year. 

At the beginning of the financial year, SASSETA ap-
proached Government Technical Advisory Commit-
tee (GTAC) to develop a turn-around strategy. One 
of the work streams they identified was the review 
of the Supply Chain Management Policy and Proce-
dures and the automation of the SCM process.  

SASSETA has SCM systems and processes in place 
that include the Practice Note 3 on the Code of Con-
duct for Supply Chain. A number of unsolicited bid 
proposals were however concluded in the year un-
der review.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE  OFFICER’S OVERVIEW

Employer grants and projects 
Expenditure

Capacity constraints and challenges 
facing the public entity

Discontinued activities

New or proposed activities

Requests for roll-over of funds

Supply chain management

Concluded or unsolicited bid proposals
for the year under review
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The challenge in SASSETA was the conflation of 
the Discretionary Grants regulations and the Sup-
ply Chain Management Policy.
  
For all previous years, including the current finan-
cial year, the Projects Unit independently man-
aged their budget and the awarding ofprojects to 
providers; in some cases contradicting the Sup-
ply Chain Processes as prescribed byNational 
Treasury and as approved in the SCM Policy and 
Procedures. As a consequence, all unsolicited bid 
proposals are currently reviewed by the adminis-
tration and will be stringently managed to guard 
against non-compliance.

One of the key challenges in SCM was the ab-
sence of an SCM Manager. A manager was ap-
pointed in June 2014 but resigned six months 
later. The position has not as yet been filled but 
is occupied in an acting capacity. The policy on 
SCM has been reviewed to ensure compliance 
with national treasury prescripts.  

In the previous financial year, the matters raised 
were as a result of material changes between the 
final annual financial statement and the Annual 
Financials submitted for audit on the 31st May 
2015. The material changes were in the following 
areas, commitments, trade payables, provisions 
and pre-determined objectives. 

The audit also highlighted non-compliance to 
SCM processes with regards to CIBD require-
ments, effectiveness of the Internal Audit and a 
lack of leadership and internal control deficiencies 
in the review of financial and pre-determined ob-
jectives. The audit outcomes for the 2011/12 and 
2012/13 financial years impacted on the previous 
(2013/14) financial year as the entity had ob-
tained qualified audit opinions for two consecutive 
years. Actions plans were developed to address 
these matters and were monitored throughout the 
year. Management notes that this is an ongoing 
process and that there are still challenges to be 
addressed. 

The Administrative team was appointed. The SETA 
also appointed two service providers to review the 
contracts within the organisation, to develop the 
2015/16 SSP, and to review the projects management, 
processes to implement service delivery. 

 
I want to acknowledge the Department of Higher Ed-
ucation and Training, specifically the Skills, Finance 
and Legal and Legislative branches, internal audit and 
AGSA for their strategic support. My sincere apprecia-
tion goes to SASSETA’s management and employees 
for their continued support during the past financial 
year which ensured that the SETA obtained unquali-
fied opinions for two consecutive years. 

We take cognisance of the fact that a lot of work re-
mains to be done to improve the performance of the 
SETA as reflected in the Auditor-General’s report. 

Other 
No other information  to be reported 

MANANA MOROKA (MS) 
SASSETA Chief Executive Officer 
29 July 2015

 

Review of the Supply Chain Management,Proj-
ects, Performance Management and ICT pro-
cesses and procedures. 

Integration of Projects with the Finance sys-
tems and automation of Supply Chain Man-
agement. 

The Finance department’s establishment of 
cost  centres and management of the organi-
sational budget including projects. 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE  OFFICER’S OVERVIEW

Outlook/ Plans for the future to address 
financial challenges

Audit report matters in the previous year 
and how would be addressed

Events after the reporting date

Acknowledgement/s or Appreciation

Submission of procurement plans for the medium 
term that enables effective planning, procurement 
and expenditure.

Code of Conduct to be signed by all officials 
dealing with procurement.

Policy review is underway and training will be 
conducted on the entity’s policies. 
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To the best of my knowledge and belief, I confirm the following: 

All information and amounts disclosed in the annual report is consistent with the annual financial 
statements audited by the Auditor-General.

The annual report is complete, accurate and is free from any omissions.

The annual report has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines on the annual report as issued 
by National Treasury.

The Annual Financial Statements (Part E) have been prepared in accordance with the Generally 
Recognised Accounting Principles standards applicable to the public entity.

The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation of the annual financial statements and for the 
judgements made in this information.  

The accounting authority is responsible for establishing, and implementing a system of internal control 
designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the performance informa-
tion, the human resources information and the annual financial statements.

The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial statements.
In our opinion, the annual report fairly reflects the operations, the performance information, the human 
resources information and the financial affairs of the public entity for the financial year ended 31 March 
2015.

Yours faithfully 

___________________ 
MANANA MOROKA (Ms) 
SASSETA Chief Executive Officer
29 July 2015

_______________________________ 
JENNIFER J. IRISH-QHOBOSHEANE (Ms)
SASSETA Administrator 
29 July 2015

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY AND CONFIRMATION
OF ACCURACY FOR THE ANNUAL REPORT
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Vision

To be the leader in skills development for safety and security.

Mission 

Education and training authority that ensures quality provision of skills development and qualifications for 
South African citizens in the safety and security environment through effective and efficient partnerships.

Values 

Transparency Our programmes and services are easy to access and understand. Our decisions and actions 
are clear, reasonable and open to examination.

Fairness Those we serve and those we work with are treated equally and without prejudice and bias, 
and in a timely manner

Professionalism We are professionals, well strained in our specialities, committed to service excellent, and 
dedicated to the successful accomplishment of our mission

Quality We constantly seek opportunities to improve our services and products. Quality and continuous
 improvements are an integral part of our daily operations.

Teamwork We work as a team and value the contributions of each individual. We know that our people 
are our most important resource. 

STRATEGIC OVERVIEW
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SASSETA is established in terms of the Skills Development Act, 1998 (Act No 97 of 1998) as amended 
and is listed as section 3A under the PFMA. It is required to operate within the following legislative man-
dates: 

 
The following sections within the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 (Act no. 108 of 1996) 
are also used as a basis for operations of the SASSETA:
   Rendering an accountable, transparent and development-orientated administration;
   Responding to people’s needs;
   Providing service impartiality, fairly, equitably and without bias;
   Promoting and maintaining high standards of ethics 

The major change in legislation that took place in the year under review was that the SETA was placed 
under Administration (Section 15 of Skills Development Act 1998). The other legislations and mandate 
that impact on SASSETA operations are as follows;

The SETA submits its strategic plan and annual 
performance plan within the framework of Act. 
The SETA has appointed internal auditors

Receive and distribute levies paid into its account by 
constituencies

Grant Regulations to manage the disbursement of 
Discretionary and Mandatory Grants. Controls expenditure 
and encourages the retention of surplus. Stipulates the 
percentage that has to be transferred to QCTO annually.

  

Ensuring fair labour practices for all employees. 
Ensuring existence and functioning of a collective bargaining 
forum
Creating awareness to employees about dispute resolution 
mechanisms to settle disputes arising during the employment 
relationship.

•

•

LEGISLATIVE AND OTHER MANDATES

Constitutional Mandates

Key policy developments and legislative changes

Learners are registered to the National Learner Record 
Database
Learning programmes are accredited and outcome based

•    Written Instruction to the SETA
•   Taking over Administration of the SETA

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

Legislation Responsibility according to the legislation

Skills Development Act 1998 
(Act No 97 of 1998) as amended

•   Develop and implement sector skills plan. 
•   Establish and promote learning programmes. 
•   Register agreements for learning programmes.
•   Perform any functions delegated by the QCTO
•   Collect and disburse skills development levies

Section 14 A of Skills 
Development Act Section 15 of 
the Skills Development Act    

Public Finance 
Management Act 1999, 
(Act No 29 of 1999)

Skills Development 
Levies Act, 1999
(Act No 09 of 1999)

Grants Regulations Act

National Qualifications 
Framework Act 2008,(Act No 67 
of 2008

Labour Relations 
Amendment Act No. 6 of 2014
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Basic Conditions of Employment 
Act No. 75 of 1997

•   Complying to regulated working hours of work 
•   Complying to leave minimum leave provision
•   Keeping particulars of employment and remuneration 
•   Complying to notice period for termination of employment
•   Not employing children and practicing forced labour
•   Not exchanging employment for a bribe. 
•   Cannot make unauthorised deductions from  the
     remuneration of an employee

Equity Employment Act  No. 55 
of 1998

•   Establishing an Employment Equity Committee.
•   Developing and implementing an Employment Equity (EPlan. 
•   Submitting the Employment Equity Report to the 
    Department of Labour.  
•   Prohibiting unfair discrimination in the workplace.
•   Promoting advancement of job opportunities for 
    previously disadvantaged people.
•   Implementing affirmation action measures.
•   Ensuring equal pay for work of equal value. 
  

Occupational  Health and Safety 
Act No. 85 of 1993

•   Ensuring health and safety of all workers in the 
    workplace.
•   Appointing health and safety representatives and 
    establishing health and safety committee.

Policy frameworks

  National Skills Development Strategy III (NSDSIII)
  National Development Plan
  Industrial Policy Action Plan
  National Skills Accord 
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Department of Higher 
Education and Training

Accounting Authority

Chief Executive Officer

Snr Manager Skills
Implementation and 

Monitoring

HOD Projects HOD Skills Planning 
and Research

HOD Finance HOD: Human
Resources

HOD Marketing and
 Communication

HOD Information
Technology

HOD SCM
(Vacant)

Snr Manager Skills
Development and 

Administration
Snr Manager Skills
Corporate Services

Chief Financial
Officer

Chief Operations Officer

HOD Skills 
Administration

HOD Learning
Programmes

HOD ETQR

Note:
 
The SASSETA organisational structure was reviewed during 2014/ 2015 and was later amended to include 
the Chief Operating Officer, Monitoring and Evaluation Officer, Information Security Officer and the Human 
Resources Strategic Manager. See Human Resources in Part D. 

This new structure will be reviewed in 2015/16 financial year by the Administrator in conjunction with GTAC. 

ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE



SASSETA  ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015 19

Performance  
Information
Part B

SASSETA  ANNUAL REPORT 2015 19



SASSETA  ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015 20

OVERVIEW OF PUBLIC ENTITY’S PERFORMANCE

Service Delivery Environment

During the year under review the SETA has under-
performed achieving below 50 percent of its targets. 
There were a number of factors contributing to the 
low achievement.
 

In the implementation of the learning programmes 
SASSETA encountered several other challenges 
including:   
     

 

During the year under review SASSETA’s service 
delivery was affected by a number of factors includ-
ing poor performance in governance, management 
and IT infrastructure and ineffective operational sys-
tems. The SETA was also challenged by changes in 
key appointments at Senior Management level, in 
Supply Chain and in the Management and Risk ar-
eas. Protracted disciplinary processes further ham-
pered progress. 

The organisation depends on an effective ICT sys-
tem to support its operations in Finance, Projects 
and Human Resource departments. One of the key 
weaknesses in the ICT environment is the ability of 
SASSETA to utilise and integrate the existing ICT 
systems, and to ensure that the necessary infrastruc-
ture exists to support ICT. 

The use of manual systems in SASSETA has 
been a major risk factor and will be addressed 
in 2015/16.

The SASSETA Board had functioned, for an ex-
tended period, without a permanent secretari-
at. This affected the efficacy of the Board, the 
scheduling of meetings and more importantly 
production of quality minutes and decision list.  
In addition, the absence of an evaluation tool to 
measure the efficacy of the function of the Board 
and its committees was a weakness.This among 
others reasons resulted in the effective function-
ing of the Board.  

At management level, the absence of a risk 
management strategy and the resultant inability 
to monitor and mitigate risks on ongoing basis 
added to the challenges faced by the SETA. The 
combination of poor governance at Board and 
Management level, ultimately led to the 
SASSETA being placed under administration. 

On 12 February SASSETA was placed under
Administration and the Administrator stepped 
into the role of Accounting Authority. The admin-
istrative process was effected a mere six weeks 
before the end of the 2014/15 financial period 
and the Administrator was therefore unable to 
make any significant impact on SASSETA’s per-
formance for the year under 
review.

The Minister of Higher Education enacted Sec-
tion 15 of the Skills Development Act that placed 
SASSETA under administration. This section of 
the act was implemented following the Minister’s 
dissatisfaction with the performance of SASSETA 
as well as how the funds allocated for skills de-
velopment were used. 

The implementation of the act meant that the 
Board and Board Committees were suspended 
and that the operations of the SETA were taken 
over by the appointed Administrator. 

The legislation introduced in 2011 to recertify all 
SETA’s ends on 31 March 2016. The ministry and 
departmental officials are currently reviewing this 
process.

Misalignment between the Annual Performance      
targets and the projects advertised and imple-
mented.
Deviation from the Discretionary Grants 
regulations.
Changes in learning programmes from the orig-
inal approved ones. For example poorperfor-
mance management, poor monitoring and eval-
uation occurring within the SETA, problems with 
the governance structures, irregularities in pro-
curement and the awarding of projects 
– all of which  resulted in over-achievement in 
some areas and under-achievement in others. 

The increase in stipends aimed at attracting 
learners had unintended consequences as it was 
not effectively budgeted for and therefore placed 
significant pressure on SASSETA’s budget.  

Implementation of projects by service providers 
who were not fully accredited or were not onac-
credited for programmes they were delivering.
Since February 2014/15 a number of these proj-
ects have either been cancelled or placed under 
investigation.

Late payments of stipends to learners which in      
some cases led to dissatisfaction amonglearners 
and increased the rate of learnerdropouts

PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

Organisational environment

Key policy developments and legislative 
changes
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Goal Statement Achievement

Strategic Outcome Oriented Goal :1 A credible institutional mechanism for 
skills planning SASSETA has embarked on number 

strategic partnerships with Universities 
such as UNISA, University of Venda, Uni-
versity of Zululand, and Nelson Mandela 
Metropolitan University with the purpose 
to improve determination of scarce and 
critical skills for the safety andsecurity 
sector.

Goal statement

A credible institutional mechanism for 
skills planning within safety and 
Security sector established within 5 
years

Strategic Outcome Oriented Goal : 2
TVETS Colleges and Universities that 
are responsive to the needs of the sec-
tor

Based on the directive from DHET in 
terms of increase relations with TVET. 
SASSETA has signed the MoUs with 
TVETs.Goal statement

Increased growth and capacity of TVET 
Colleges to provide relevant 
programmes within the sector

Strategic Outcome Oriented Goal : 3 Employable youth in the sector

Learners entering the programme in the 
previous financial year all completed in 
2014/15. We did not however account for 
them as we needed to issue certificates 
from TVETs. This target was not set in the 
SLA but was set in the APP.

Goal statement
Empowerment of youth with skills 
development opportunities enabling  
them to marketable in the labour market

Strategic Outcome Oriented Goal : 4 Unemployment reduction in the safety 
and security sector SASSETA undertook internships, Work-

place Integrated Learning, 
workplace experience to 
enhance productivity in the sectorGoal statement

Enhanced productivity in the safety y 
and security sector through the 
implementation of skills development 
intervention.

Strategic Outcome Oriented Goal : 5
Optimally capacitated  Trade Unions, 
CBOs CBCs and NGOs in the Safety 
and security Sector SASSETA has supported  NGO,NLPEs, 

Cooperative. Some set targets that were 
not achieved are the Trade unions, CBOs 
and SMMEs

Goal statement

Improve the skills targeting identified 
skills needs for cooperatives, small 
business, Unions, NGOs, and CBO to 
fulfill and 
sustain their mandate.

Strategic Outcome Oriented Goal : 6 Improved skills development service in 
the sector SASSETA’s governance comprised of the 

Board that was fully Constituted together 
with the other constitutional 
committees such as EXCO, 
Audit and Risk Committee , Governance 
and Strategy Committee, etc., prior to the 
institution being placed under administra-
tion on 12 February 2015.

Goal statement
Effective and efficient service delivery 
through Corporate Governance and
 institutional capacity by 2018/19.

STRATEGIC OUTCOME ORIENTED GOALS
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Indicator Actual achieve-
ment 2013/14

Planned target (s) 
2014/15

Achievement 2014/15

Actual

Deviation from 
planned target 
to 
Actual 
Achievement for 
2014/15

Comment on 
deviations

7.1.1 Establish a credible institutional mechanism for continuous skills planning and updates by 2015/16.

A well researched 
and 
updated SSP 
approved by DHET 
and other relevant 
stakeholders

SSP compiled, 
submitted and 
approved

SSP compiled 
and accepted by 
DHET

SSP Compiled and 
accepted by DHET none

7.1.2. Establish 8 partnerships with Universities for labour market research and commissioned research by 2015/16.

Number of 
commissioned 
research projects 
for impact analysis 
of the learning 
interventions.

2 research 
impact 
analysis are 
being 
conducted with 
university of 
Zululand

3 impact analysis 
for NSDS II and 
III interventions. 0 -3

Not achieved.
Impact studies took 
longer than
 anticipated; they are 
currently in progress 
but not yet 
completed.

Number of 
partnerships 
entered into with 
Universities for 
labour market 
research

2 MoUs have 
been entered 
into with 
Universities

Signing of 
research MOU’s 
with 3  
Universities

2 MoUs have been 
entered into with 
Universities: 
University of Venda 
and University of 
South Africa.

-1

Not achieved. 
Due to the 
Universities
 prioritising their core 
mandates the 
negotiations could not 
be finalised.
This target will be 
addressed in 
2015/16.

7.1.3 Increase number of employers claiming the mandatory grants by 5% by the year 2015/16.

% increase of 
mandatory grants 
claimed 944 2% increase.(963)

-3% (916) decrease 
from prior 
achievement

4.8% deviation 
from planned 
target 
(-47 claims 
outstanding

Not achieved. 
Due to the 
mandatory grant 
regulation changes 
where the mandatory 
grant was reduced to 
20 percent from

50 percent resulting 
in continued fewer 
uptakes from com-
panies.

No of Skills 
Development Facil-
itator’s trained.

552 SDF were 
trained

500 SDF to be 
trained 564 SDF were trained +64

Over achieved. There 
was an unanticipated 
increase in demand 
from stakeholders.

7.1.4 Built capacity within 5 government departments for skills planning and submission of WSPs/ATRs  by 2015/16.

Number of HRD 
units capacitated 
in sector skills 
plan and sub-
mission of WSP/
ATRs

5 5
5 government 
department capac-
itated

 

PROGRAMME 1 (4.1): SKILLS PLANNING, RESEARCH AND REPORTING
The purpose of the programme:
To develop a credible institutional mechanism for skills planning to provide reliable information on supply 
and demand for skills in the Safety and Security Sector.

PERFORMANCE INFORMATION BY PROGRAMME
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Goal 1 of NSDS III addresses the need to‘es-
tablish a credible institution mechanism for skills 
planning’. To support this goal, SASSETA has 
formed partnerships with the higher education 
institutions such as Nelson Mandela Metropolitan 
University, University of South Africa; University 
of Zululand; and University of Venda to assist in 
conducting credible research. This resulted in 
the generation and improvement of the quality of 
data, used for the development of the SSP. 

The scarce and critical skills outlined in the SSP 
formed the basis of the projects SASSETA con-
ducted to address the skills shortages. 

A key function that could not be concluded was 
the evaluation of the impact analysis due to the 
length of time it takes to conduct a proper as-
sessment of the impact. However, considerable 
progress was made in this regard and it is antic-
ipated that this task will be finalised in the next 
financial year. The SETA also has to improve its 
research capacity with universities in 2015/16. 

It is important to note that there was a continued 
decline in the submission of the WSPs/ATRs 
which was attributed to thereduction of mandato-
ry grants payment from 50 percent to 20 percent 
which may have discouraged employers from 
submitting the 

document. In order to address this challenge.
 
SASSETA will embark on road shows to encourage 
stakeholders to submit the WSPs/ATRs and claim 
the mandatory grants. In 2014/15 the road shows 
were used to encourage online submission and 564 
SDF were capacitated and five government HRD 
units submitted WSPs/ATRs electronically to reduce 
the difficulty for SASSETA to capture all the informa-
tion manually in 2015/16 financial year.  

Changes to planned targets
No changes were effected.

SKILLS PLANNING, RESEARCH AND REPORTING
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Indicator
Actual 
achievement 
2013/14

Planned 
target (s) 
2014/15

Achievement 2014/15

Actual

Deviation from 
planned target to 
Actual 
Achievement for 
2014/15

Comment on 
deviations

7.2.1 Develop partnership agreements with 6 universities, 6 public TVET Colleges and 7 other stakeholder collabo-
ration by 2015/16 for implementation of SASSETA learning programmes.

No of 
partnership 
agreements in 
place with 
Universities.

2 MoUs signed
MoUs with 1 
University in 
place.

SASSETA signed 
MoU with 1 
University

No of partnership 
agreements in 
place with other 
stakeholders

4 MoUs signed 1 MOU signed - -1

Not achieved 

No of 
partnership 
agreements in 
place with Public 
TVET Colleges.

3 MoU entered 
into with 
TVETs

1 MoU with 
TVETs in place.

SASSETA signed 
MoU with 4 TVETs +3

Achieved 
There was a 
need identified 
in 2014/15 for 
SETAs to partner 
with TVETs.

7.2.2 Approval of 4 universities and 6 TVET colleges to offer learning programmes within scope of SASSETA   
by 2015/16.

No of 
universities 
approved to offer
SASSETA learn-
ing 
programmes.

-

1 Universities 
approved to 
offer 
SASSETA 
learning 
programmes.

- -1

Not achieved 
The process has 
been initiated.
Discussions 
have begun with 
institution but not 
yet completed.

No of TVETs 
approved to 
offer SASSETA 
learning 
programmes.

-

2 Public TVET’s 
approved to 
offer 
SASSETA 
learning 
programmes.

- -2

Not achieved 
The process has 
been initiated/
discussions have
 begun with 
institutions but 
not yet finalised.

Purpose of the programme: 

Facilitation of the delivery of quality Learning Programmes, specially targeting the scarce and critical skills 
within the sector. Identification of skills development provision challenges and addresses to ensure improved 
access to quality and relevant education and training in the sector including rural areas. 

PROGRAMME 2 (4.2): SKILLS  IMPLIMENTATION AND MONITORING
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7.2.3  Provide training to 10200 learners on learnerships and 9000 learners on skills programmes for both   
unemployed and employed focusing on scarce and critical skills.

No of employed 
learners 
entering 
Learnerships.

1789 1520 1474 -46

Not achieved 
Due to the delay 
in the approval 
and contract-
ing process 
SASSETA could 
not achieve the 
target.

No of employed 
learners 
completing learn-
erships.

271 760 1353 +593

Achieved 
The 
over-achieve-
ment is due to 
learnerships that 
were entered into 
in 2013/14 and 
completed in 
2014/15.

No of 
employed 
learners entering 
skills 
programmes.

2996 4500 5286 +786

Achieved 
Due to high 
demand of skills 
programme in  
workplaces.

No of employed 
learners 
completing skills 
programmes.

990 2250 1908 -342

Not achieved 
There is a 
backlog in 
certification 
process. 
A turnaround 
strategy has 
been developed 
to clear backlog 
and this process 
will be finalised 
in 2015/16 
financial period.

No of 
unemployed 
learners 
entering 
learnerships.

2422 3000 1849 -1151

Not achieved 
Focus was 
directed at the 
demand for skills 
programmes and 
less on entering 
leanerships. 

No of 
unemployed 
learners
completing learn-
er ships.

1576 1500 829 -641

Not achieved
The certificate 
backlog that 
prevented the 
reporting on all 
learners in 
2014/15 will be 
rectified and all 
learners will be 
reported on in 
2015/16.

Indicator
Actual 
achievement 
2013/14

Planned 
target (s) 
2014/15

Achievement 2014/15

Actual

Deviation from 
planned target to 
Actual 
Achievement for 
2014/15

Comment on 
deviations
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No of 
unemployed 
learners entering 
skills pro-
grammes.

1559 1490 1763 +273

Achieved. 
Due to a high 
demand in the 
sector more 
learners were 
entered for skills 
programmes.   

No of 
unemployed 
learners 
completing skills 
programmes.

974 745 1053 +308

Achieved 
Due to late learn-
er enrolment in 
2013/14 which 
was rolled over 
into 2014/15.

7.2.4 Provide training to 600 artisans through different learning routes, learnerships, apprenticeships, RPL by   
2015/16.

No of artisan 
workers
 entering through 
RPL and 
learnerships.

- 400 - - 400

Not achieved.
Learners started 
but contracts 
were not signed. 
This matter is 
currently 
addressed by the 
Administrator.

No of artisan 
workers
successful 
completing 
through RPL and 
learnerships.

- 200 - -200

Not achieved.
Due to SASSETA 
prioritising this 
programme/ 
artisans in 
2013/14 most of 
them are still in 
training and will 
complete in the 
following year.

No of 
unemployed 
artisan entering 
through 
learnerships, 
RPL, 
Apprenticeships, 
NCV.

432 250 470 +220

Achieved 
Due to high 
demand for 
artisans at 
community level.

No of
unemployed 
artisans 
completing 
through 
learnerships, 
RPL, 
Apprenticeships, 
NCV.

- 250 111 -139

Not achieved 
This is a 3 year 
artisan training 
related 
learning 
programme 
which means 
that many of the
programmes will 
be completed in 
2016/2017.

Indicator
Actual 

achievement 
2013/14

Planned 
target (s) 
2014/15

Achievement 2014/15

Actual

Deviation from 
planned target to 

Actual 
Achievement for 

2014/15

Comment on 
deviations
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7.2.5 Provide with workplace Integrated learning, internships and workplace experience to 5000 youth focusing  on 
scarce and critical skills by 2015/16.

No of 
learners 
entering Work 
Integrated 
Learning: TVET’s

703 2200 1269 -931

Not achieved 
Learners were 
placed but 
contracts for 
some of the 
learners were not 
signed  and 
therefore could 
not  be validated.  
The matter is 
being addressed 
by the Adminis-
trator.

No of learners 
entering Work 
Integrated 
Learning:
Universities

- 100 21 -79

Not achieved. 
Due to the focus 
placed on TVET 
placements this 
target was not 
achieved. 
A more balanced 
approach will be 
implemented in 
2015/16.

No of learners 
successfully 
completing Work 
Integrated 
Learning: TVET’s

- 1100 - -

Not achieved. 
Work integrated 
Learning (TVETs) 
was introduced 
in 2013/14 and 
implemented 
in 2014/15. 
SASSETA can 
only report on 
completion in 
2015/16.

No of learners 
successfully 
completing Work 
Integrated 
Learning: 
Universities

- 50 - -50

Not achieved 
The greater 
focus was placed 
on TVETS and 
there was not 
enough focus 
on universi-
ties during the 
period.

Indicator
Actual 

achievement 
2013/14

Planned 
target (s) 
2014/15

Achievement 2014/15

Actual

Deviation from 
planned target to 

Actual 
Achievement for 

2014/15

Comment on 
deviations
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No of 
learners 
enrolled
internship 
programmes.

177 150 55 -95

Not achieved
Due to problems 
in the contracting 
process which 
resulted n the 
non-verification 
of this target. 
The 
matter is under 
investigation by 
the Administrator 
and may lead to 
over-reporting in 
2015/16.

No of learners 
enrolled for work-
place experiential 
learning 
programmes.

703 150 0 -150

Not achieved
This target  is 
combined 
Internship/
WIL reported on 
below

No of learners 
completing in-
ternship 
programmes.

37 75 263 218

Not achieved
This target  is 
combined with
Internship/
workplace report-
ed on above

No of learners 
completing work-
place experiential 
learning 
programmes.

0 75 0 -75

Not achieved. 
Projects started 
late in 2014/15 
and will be 
completed in 
2015/16.

7.2.6 Provide adult language and numeracy skills to 200 employed learners to enable additional training by   
2015/16.

No of learners 
successfully 
completing AET 
programmes.

0 50 8 -42

Not achieved 
Projects started 
late into 2014/15 
which will be 
completed in 
2015/16

Indicator
Actual 

achievement 
2013/14

Planned 
target (s) 
2014/15

Achievement 2014/15

Actual

Deviation from 
planned target to 

Actual 
Achievement for 

2014/15

Comment on 
deviations

No of learners in 
enrolled in AET 
programmes.

26 100 179 +79

Achieved  
Due to high 
demand within 
the cluster i.e. 
Defence, SAPS 
and Private 
Security. 
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7.2.7 Distribute career guides to 17 000 learners in rural areas and townships by 2015/16.

No. of learners 
in rural areas 
reached

10 304

Career guides 
distributed to 
1000 learners 
in the rural 
areas.

1 858 +858

Achieved
Attendance 
turn-out was 
higher than 
anticipated.

7.2.8 Provide support to 4 trade unions, 4 NGOs, 4 CBOs, 10 NLPE, and 1270 SMME by 2015/16.

No of Trade 
Unions 
supported.

5 2 -3

Not achieved 
3 unions did not 
sign the 
agreements.

No of NGO’s 
supported. 4 5 5

No of CBO’s 
supported. 2 5 3 -2

Not achieved
2 CBO’s did not 
sign the 
agreements.

No of Coopera-
tives 
supported.

2 2 5 +3

Over achieved 
The demand was 
higher at 
community level.

7.2.9 Review, align and register 8 QCTO qualifications by 2015 in partnerships with employers.

No of 
qualifications 
registered with 
QCTO

-
3 Qualifications 
to be registered 
with QCTO.

Three qualification 
were registered

7.2.10 Award 1100 bursaries to learners for study on NQF level 6 and above addressing scarce and critical skills  
shortages by 2015/16.

No of employed 
learners 
awarded 
bursaries 
entered.

60 250 161 -89

Not achieved 
We did not meet 
the target due to 
unsigned con-
tacts which could 
not be validated.

No of employed 
learners 
awarded 
bursaries 
successfully 
completing.

- 125 0 -125

Not achieved
SASSETA did 
not have proper 
systems in place 
to track progress 
of bursaries 
awarded. The 
matter is being 
addressed by the 
Administrator. 

No of 
unemployed 
learners 
awarded 
bursaries 
entered.

148 300 357 +57

Over achieved
Due to high 
demand of 
bursaries.

Indicator
Actual 

achievement 
2013/14

Planned 
target (s) 
2014/15

Achievement 2014/15

Actual

Deviation from 
planned target to 

Actual 
Achievement for 

2014/15

Comment on 
deviations
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No of 
unemployed 
learners 
awarded 
bursaries 
successfully 
completing.

- 150 0 -150

Not achieved 
SASSETA did 
not have proper 
systems in place 
to track progress 
of bursaries 
awarded. The 
matter is being 
addressed by the 
Administrator.

7.2.11 Implement flagship programmes incorporating management of HIV/AIDS targeting 5400 learners with disabili-
ties, from rural areas, women and the youth.

No. of learners 
registered in 
flagship 
programmes

210 300 390 +90

Achieved 
Due to demand 
and partnerships 
established 
between GDE
(Scholar Patrols) 
and other 
stakeholders in 
the sector. 

No of learners 
successfully 
completing the 
flagship 
programmes

29 135 - -135

Not achieved.
Flagship 
programmes 
were not 
implemented 
in a systematic 
manner resulting 
in a number of 
projects to be 
completed in 
2015/16. 

7.2.12 Monitor and evaluate all discretionary grants projects by 2015/16.

Quarterly 
Reports 
generated for all 
projects.

4 Quarterly 
monitoring 
reports.

Quarterly 
reports
generated for 
all projects.

4 QMR’s 
generated -

Indicator
Actual 

achievement 
2013/14

Planned 
target (s) 
2014/15

Achievement 2014/15

Actual

Deviation from 
planned target to 

Actual 
Achievement for 

2014/15

Comment on 
deviations

Programme 4.1 and 4.2 had a total of 47 indicators on which the SETA achieved 19 indicators. However 
on 28 indicators we under achieved which highlights the areas that require urgent attention.
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The Ministery has declared the Decade of Artisan from 2014 -2024. SASSETA has over achieved in this 
area through the enrolment of 470 learners on artisan related learnerships during the year under review. 
SASSETA will be implementing further artisan related training in a more structured way and in close part-
nership with the NAMB.

As in the previous financial year there was under-performance in a number of areas.  During the year un-
der review projects were again implemented late despite the review to improve undertaken in the previous 
financial year. The key reason for under achievement was the late implementation of projects due to the 
lengthy Discretionary Grants process that delays project implementation. In addition more than 60 percent 
of the work related to learningprogrammes has always been done manually.SASSETA has since sourced 
additional packages from its IT service provider to ensure that work can be automated and the administra-
tive burden be eased.

The ETQA Department has developed an improvement of quality assurance processes for SASSETA 
training providers’ accreditation for the provision of enhanced learning programmes within Safety and 
Security Sector.

The table below summarises of the accredited providers for 2014/15.

1. Full Accreditation Reports 38

2. Provisional Accreditation Reports 90

3. Program Approval Reports/Other SETAs 35

4. Status Upgrade from Provisional to Full approval Reports 14

5. Extension of Scopes Reports 55

                                                              TOTAL 232

The significant backlog in the issuing of certificates 
prompted the implementation of the certification 
turnaround strategy. It is now anticipated that the 
turnaround strategy will eradicate the certification 
backlogs and re-instate good service delivery. This 
improvement elicited a positive response from the 
industry especially with regards to the older sub-
missions being prioritised. 

Partnerships with Public Institutions were explored 
with the aim to ensure that these institutions offer 
SASSETA’s learning programmes in their curricu-
lum. The following TVET Colleges were however 
awarded full approval as Education and Training 
provider for qualifications is within SASSETA’s 
scope (CPUT, Tshwane North and False Bay).

Early in the 2015/16 financial year, the finance unit 
engaged in process re-engineering to ensure that 
the financial processes including supply chain man-
agement conform to all applicable laws and regula-
tions and also promote transparency, and efficiency 
which will result in clean administration. The depart-
ments in the sector have been engaged and com-
mitments obtained regarding their implementation 
of the DPSA directive. This may assist the on-time 
receipt of the levies, increase the SETA’s ability to 
meet the targets entered into with the Department 
of Higher Education and result in sufficient funds to 
deliver on the mandate of the organisation.

There were no changes effected to planned targets 
during the year under review.

SKILLS  IMPLIMENTATION AND MONITORING

Certification

Accreditation

Strategy to overcome areas of under performance

Decade of the Artisans

Public Institutions

Changes to planned targets

Strategy to overcome areas of under 
performance
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PROGRAMME 3 (4.3): CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Purpose of the programme:
To provide strategic direction and leadership to SASSETA with regard to implementation of strategic 
priorities in the Sector Skills Plan, Strategic Plan and the Annual Performance Plan.

Indicator
Actual 

achievement 
2013/14

Planned target 
(s) 2014/15

Achievement 2014/15

Actual

Deviation 
from planned 

target to Actual 
Achievement 
for 2014/15

Comment on 
deviations

7.3.1  Corporate governance framework for the institution in place

Improve 
performance on 
SASSETA Quar-
terly monitoring 
Report

81% 
achievement of 
targets.

72% achievement 
of targets.

43% 
achievement of 
targets.

-29%

Not achieved
Instability within 
Senior 
Management, 
due to constant 
change of CEOs.

Effective  facilita-
tion of gover-
nance meetings

All governance 
meetings 
scheduled and 
held in line with 
the constitution

All governance 
meetings sched-
uled and held 
in line with the 
constitution

All governance 
meetings 
scheduled and 
held in line with 
the constitution

Annual evalua-
tion of 
effectiveness 
of governance 
meetings held.

Develop and 
implement a tool 
for evaluation of 
the effectiveness 
of the governance 
meeting held.

Not achieved The tool was not 
developed

SASSETA, 
through the 
facilitation of 
GTAC, is in 
the process of 
developing the 
evaluation tool in 
2015/16.

Complied with 
legal 
requirements

AGSA report

Review and 
implementation 
of the 
SASSETA 
compliance 
framework

-
SASSETA was 
placed under 
Administration

Due to non 
compliance 
SASSETA was 
placed under 
Administration on 
the 12 February 
2015.

7.3.2  Developed and implemented Sector Skills Plan and strategic plan of the SETA by 2015/16

Stakeholder`s 
satisfaction of 
SASSETA SSP 
measured by 
annual 
stakeholder 
satisfaction 
surveys

Target not 
specified

80 % stakeholder 
satisfaction Not achieved

Not achieved 
Survey was not 
conducted due to 
capacity 
constraints within 
the SETA.

Strategic plan 
link to SSP and 
approved by 
DHET

Strategic plan 
was approved

Approved strate-
gic plan

Strategic Plan 
was approved

7.3.3 Established 3 provincial offices to improve delivery of services at provincial level by 2015.

No of provincial 
offices 
established.

1 provincial  
office and 1 
satellite office 
established 
(KZN)

2 provincial offic-
es established.

In the process 
of establish-
ment

-1

Not achieved 
Due to 
misalignment 
of budgets and 
planning pro-
cesses.
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Strategy to overcome areas of under performance

Changes to planned targets

The following are key strategies

The office of the CEO mainly provides support for governance, implementation of the compliance frame-
work, strategy development and oversight on the implementation and takes the lead in increasing pro-
vincial presents. The full functioning of the office of the CEO was hampered by several factors especially 
such as the performance of the Board and constant changes in CEOs.  Despite this the office of the CEO 
managed to ensure the development of the Strategic Plan and the Annual Performance that were 
approved by the Department as well as ensuring that governance meetings are held. SASSETA was 
placed under Administration and the development of strategies is driven from the office of the Administra-
tor in conjunction with GTAC.

   

-   Review of the learnership contracts with the view to ensure that all contracts comply with the PFMA and         
S  SDA
-   Review of contracts of senior managers to ensure that they are delivering against the DHET, APP and     
S  SLA
-   Review and resubmission of the Strategic Plan and the Annual Performance Plan to ensure that it 
    delivers against the mandate as set out in the Service Level Agreement and in line with the budget
-   Development of costs centres and In-Year Monitoring to improve financial accountability
-   Review of all contracts in SASSETA to ensure compliance with contract management

No changes were made to the indicators

In the 2015/16 financial year the finance unit engaged in process re-engineering to ensure that the 
financial process including supply chain management conform to all applicable laws and regulations and 
also promote transparency, and efficiency which will result in clean administration.

There were no changes effected to planned targets during the year under review.

 

PROGRAMME 3 (4.3): CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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Purpose of the programme: 

Design and implement financial controls that ensure good financial governance and financial viability of 
SASSETA.

Indicator Actual achieve-
ment 2013/14

Planned target 
(s) 2014/15

Achievement 2014/15

Actual

Deviation 
from planned 

target to Actual 
Achievement 
for 2014/15

Comment on 
deviations

7.4.1 Financial stability of the SETA achieved through the development and implementation of Financial 
Strategy by 2015.

Improved 
financial 
management 
within the 
prescripts of the 
PFMA and SETA 
Grant Regula-
tions.

Maintenance 
of Unqualified 
Audits

Maintenance 
of Unqualified 
Audits

unqualified
audit achieved.

Implemented 
Financial 
Strategy.

Implementa-
tion of financial 
strategy

Review of and 
implementa-
tion of financial 
strategy

No financial 
strategy 
document was 
prepared; 
however the 
policies were 
reviewed and 
approved by the 
Board in April 
2014.

Not achieved. 
Administrator, in 
collaboration with 
GTAC, has com-
menced with the 
process of 
preparing a finan-
cial 
strategy outlining 
the processes to be 
followed in carrying 
out financial tasks. 
This strategy will be 
implemented in 
2015/16.

7.4.2 Established and maintained appropriate asset management system and Supply Chain Management  Systems by 
2015/16.

3.3. PROGRAMME 4 (4.4): FINANCE 

Effective and 
efficient Supply 
Chain Manage-
ment and Asset 
Management 
systems in place.

Developed and 
implemented as-
set management 
and Supply Chain 
Management 
policies.

Reviewed and 
implemented 
asset manage-
ment and SCM 
policies

SCM and Asset 
management 
policies in place 
however not 
adequately 
implemented as 
non-compliance 
matters were 
raised in the 
interim audit 
regarding 
procurement 
processes.

Achieved 
The SCM policy 
was updated by 
the Administrator 
subsequent to year 
end. The gaps 
in the previous 
policy have been 
addressed, and are 
being implemented.



SASSETA  ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015 35

Effective and 
efficient Supply 
Chain Manage-
ment and Asset 
Management 
systems in place.

Developed and 
implemented as-
set management 
and Supply Chain 
Management 
policies.

Reviewed and 
implemented 
asset manage-
ment and SCM 
policies

SCM and Asset 
management 
policies in place 
however not 
adequately 
implemented as 
non-compliance 
matters were 
raised in the 
interim audit 
regarding 
procurement 
processes.

Achieved 
The SCM policy 
was updated by 
the Administrator 
subsequent to year 
end. The gaps 
in the previous 
policy have been 
addressed, and are 
being implemented.

7.4.3 Developed Risk Management Strategy that addresses the control environment of SASSETA by 2015.

Reduced risk 
incidents at SAS-
SETA.

Developed and 
implemented risk 
register action 
plan

Developed and 
Implemented 
Risk Manage-
ment Strategy.

Risk Manage-
ment Strategy 
developed and 
implemented.

Not achieved
The risk strategy 
was developed, but 
never signed off 
by the Board and 
senior managers for 
implementation.

Developed and 
implemented 
Management Let-
ter action plan

Developed and 
Implemented 
Management Let-
ter action plan

Action plan 
developed and 
implemented

7.4.4 Effective collection of contributions levies from government departments.

Quarterly contri-
butions

Advance quarter-
ly contributions

Advance quarter-
ly contributions.

Levies have been 
received from all 
national 
departments 
within the safety 
and security 
sector. The 
contributions by 
the departments 
were however 
not per the DPSA 
directive requir-
ing departments 
to contribute 30% 
of the 1% of their 
payroll budget. 
The departments 
contributed at 
most 10% of their 
1%.

Achieved
Meetings have 
been held with 
the departments, 
including 
provincial 
departments and 
other stakeholders 
within the sector 
to discuss the 
payment of levies 
at 30% of their 1% 
payroll budget. 

Indicator Actual achieve-
ment 2013/14

Planned target 
(s) 2014/15

Achievement 2014/15

Actual

Deviation 
from planned 

target to Actual 
Achievement 
for 2014/15

Comment on 
deviations
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SASSETA obtained an unqualified audit opinion with compliance findings in the 2013/14 financial year 
after two consecutive qualifications, in the 2011/12 and 2012/13 financial years respectively. 
The unqualified audit opinion has been maintained in the financial year under review.

The departments in the sector have been engaged and commitments obtained regarding implementation 
of the DPSA directive on their side. This will ensure receipt of the levies on time, ability to meet the targets 
entered into with the Department of Higher Education and that there are sufficient funds to deliver on the 
mandate of the organization and maintain financial sustainability.

The revenue collected from the departments as depicted below is part of the overall revenue collection.

Revenue collection

2014/15 2013/14

Sources of revenue Estimate

Actual 
Amount 
Collected

(Over)/
Under 
Collection Estimate

Actual 
Amount 
Collected

(Over)/
Under 
Collection

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Skills Development Levy: 
income

224 632 221 970   2 662 250 813 219 448  31365 

Levies received from depart-
ments within the sector

70 292 77 071 (6 779) 28 548 69418 (40870) 

Other Income 10 143 9 993    ( 150) 12 516 10726 1790 

Total 305 067 309 034     3 967 291 877 299 592 (7 715) 

 

There are no capital investments/ infrastructure projects: SASSETA’s assets are used for daily operations, 
are recorded in the asset register and depreciated annually on a straight line basis. SASSETA disposed of 
three motor vehicles during the year under review, and lost computer equipment to the value of
R 149,000 due to theft. 

Assets acquired in the current financial year amounted to R4, 87 million. Included in the additions amount 
is R2 million worth of assets acquired on lease terms. 

The total asset disposal for the year under review amounted to R540,000 in carrying amounts.

Capital investment

3.3. PROGRAMME 4 (4.4): FINANCE 
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Purpose of the programme: 

To provide effective and efficient corporate human capital, integrated marketing and communication and 
information technology administrative support to the entity.  

Indicator Actual achieve-
ment 2013/14

Planned target 
(s) 2014/15

Achievement 2014/15

Actual

Deviation 
from planned 

target to Actual 
Achievement for 

2014/15

Comment on 
deviations

7.5.1 Implemented and reviewed Human Capital Management Strategy in the SETA by 2015/16.

Approved amend-
ed Human 
Resource 
Strategy.

Review and 
amendment of the 
HR strategy

Implementation 
of Reviewed 
Strategy.

Not achieved

Due to poor 
planning and 
issues around 
governance this 
planned target 
was not 
implemented.

Optimised attrac-
tion and retention 
of top talent in 
SASSETA.

Development and 
approval of reten-
tion strategy

Implement reten-
tion strategy

Top talent not 
retained and strat-
egy not reviewed.

Instability at a 
management level 
and problems 
earlier identified 
within the SETA 
affected the way 
in which 
SASSETA recruit-
ed and retained 
people.

Optimised re-
muneration and 
retention of top 
talent in 
SASSETA

Approval of remu-
neration strategy

Implementation 
of remuneration 
strategy

Remuneration 
strategy was 
implemented

7.5.2 Developed, implemented and reviewed organisational structure.

Organisational 
structure that 
supports the SAS-
SETA mandate.

Structure 
reviewed and 
amended

Implementation of 
the amended al 
structure.

Organisational 
structure reviewed

Achieved 
The structure review 
was not adequately 
consulted and did 
not follow public 
service regulations 
prescripts.

7.5.3 Increased service delivery, employee productivity and customer relations through the development and implemen-
tation of Information Communication Technology Services.

PROGRAMME 5 (4.5): CORPORATE SERVICES 

Information and 
Communication 
System that 
effectively 
supports the 
operations and 
services of 
SASSETA.

Develop and 
implement
information 
Technology 
Strategy Phase I

Develop and 
implement 
information 
Technology 
Strategy Phase II

Delays in 
implementation of 
Phase II

Not achieved
Lack of capacity, 
poor infrastructure 
and non-imple-
mentation of the 
ICT framework 
resulted in 
non-delivery.

Achieved 
The structure 
review was 
not adequately 
consulted and did 
not follow public 
service regula-
tions prescripts.
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Information and 
Communication 
System that 
effectively 
supports the 
operations and 
services of 
SASSETA.

Develop and 
implement
information 
Technology 
Strategy Phase I

Develop and 
implement 
information 
Technology 
Strategy Phase II

Delays in 
implementation of 
Phase II

Not achieved
Lack of capacity, 
poor infrastructure 
and non-implemen-
tation of the ICT 
framework 
resulted in non-de-
livery.

7.5.4 Developed and maintained Corporate reputation on a national scale through measurable marketing tactics.

Increased 
SASSETA 
awareness on a 
national basis

Strengthen 
internal market-
ing. Develop 
customer 
relationship man-
agement 

National Road 
shows, exhibitions  
and events that 
increase 
SASSETA 
awareness

45 events 
conducted and 
road shows held 
nationwide

7.5.5   Automation of Records Management.

Automated 
system in place.

Developed and 
maintained 
automated 
records manage-
ment system.

Developed and 
maintained 
automated 
records manage-
ment system.

System roll-out 
not achieved

Not achieved 
Delays in the 
procurement of the 
system. 

Indicator Actual achieve-
ment 2013/14

Planned target 
(s) 2014/15

Achievement 2014/15

Actual

Deviation 
from planned 
target to Ac-
tual Achieve-

ment for 
2014/15

Comment on 
deviations

7.5.3 Increased service delivery, employee productivity and customer relations through the development and implemen-
tation of Information Communication Technology Services.

50

40

30

20

10

0 Learners

23

12
10

45

18.2 Youth

Fig 1: Events per Market sector 2014 / 2015

SDF/ TP Road
Shows

Total

The challenges inhibiting the full implementation of the Integrated Marketing Communication (IMC) plan 
centred on cost containment. The Integrated Marketing Communications strategy will be amended in Quar-
ter 4 of 2015/ 2016 to include a strong awareness drive through cost effective digital marketing to bolster 
rural outreach and digital media management programmes in the next financial year. 

The Human Resource unit has seen progress in various areas. Key among these was the recruitment and 
filling of vacant posts at senior management level, improved relations between labour and management, 
implementation of policies and procedures as well as the management of the SASSETA performance 
management system. Challenges that faced the department included a large number of disciplinary cases, 
retention of top talent and the development of an automated records management system.   

No changes were effected in the targets.   

7.5.4 Developed and maintained Corporate reputation on a national scale through measurable marketing tactics.

Increased 
SASSETA 
awareness on a 
national basis

Strengthen 
internal market-
ing. Develop 
customer 
relationship man-
agement 

National Road 
shows, exhibitions  
and events that 
increase 
SASSETA 
awareness

45 events 
conducted and 
road shows held 
nationwide

7.5.5   Automation of Records Management.

Automated 
system in place.

Developed and 
maintained 
automated 
records manage-
ment system.

Developed and 
maintained 
automated 
records manage-
ment system.

System roll-out 
not achieved

Not achieved 
Delays in the 
procurement of the 
system. 

CORPORATE SERVICES 

The Corporate Services Department provides support to the operations of the entity through its units of 
Marketing and Communications, Information Technology, and Human Resources. The ICT environment had 
continued to face challenges largely as a result of a lack of implementation of the ICT Strategy, its policies 
and procedures. One of the key projects under ICT was the integration of Finance and Project systems. This 
would have improved performance in the projects and finance environment and, more importantly, enabled 
the reconciliation between the two departments.   

The Marketing and Communications unit achieved its target in terms of national events staged: 51 per cent 
of total a total of 45 events conducted engaged learners (Grade 9 to 12). Events targeting the youth calculat-
ed to 27 percent of total events staged with 22 percent of the total events structured as national road show 
workshops for SDFs and training providers.
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7.5.4 Developed and maintained Corporate reputation on a national scale through measurable marketing tactics.

Increased 
SASSETA 
awareness on a 
national basis

Strengthen 
internal market-
ing. Develop 
customer 
relationship man-
agement 

National Road 
shows, exhibitions  
and events that 
increase 
SASSETA 
awareness

45 events 
conducted and 
road shows held 
nationwide

7.5.5   Automation of Records Management.

Automated 
system in place.

Developed and 
maintained 
automated 
records manage-
ment system.

Developed and 
maintained 
automated 
records manage-
ment system.

System roll-out 
not achieved

Not achieved 
Delays in the 
procurement of the 
system. 
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Introduction

Corporate governance embodies processes and 
systems by which public entities are directed, 
controlled and held to account. In addition to leg-
islative requirements based on a public entity’s 
enabling legislation, and the Companies Act, cor-
porate governance with regard to public entities is 
applied through the precepts of the Public Finance 
Management Act (PFMA) and run in tandem with 
the principles contained in the King III  report on 
Corporate Governance.

SASSETA is a Schedule 3A public entity that re-
ports to the Department of Higher Education and 
Training. The Minister of Higher Education and 
Training is the Executive Authority. The Adminis-
trator is the Accounting Authority, as 
gazetted in Government Notice No. 38469.

Operations of SASSETA are aligned with sound 
corporate governance structures and process-
es that conforms to the Skills Development Act, 
97 of 1998 (as amended), and are supported by 
the Skills Development Levies Act, 97 of 2003, 
the Public Finance Management Act of 1999 (as 
amended) and Treasury regulations, all of which 
enable SASSETA to achieve its National Skills 
Development Strategy (NSDS) III imperatives.

Portfolio Commitees  

  19 November 2014 – Presentation of the 
    SASSETA 2013/14 Annual Report.  

Executive Authority

SASSETA signed a Service Level Agreement (SLA) 
with the Director-General of the Department of 
Higher Education and Training and reported to the 
Department as follows:
 
   The SETA submitted quarterly performance 

     reports to the Department 
 
   Responded  to the Minister on Section 14 

    queries.
   Submitted Strategic Plans and Annual 

    Performance Plans as well addenda to the 
    Annual  Performance Plans.

The Accounting Authority  

The former Chairperson of the Board regularly 
attended the Chairperson’s meetings to discuss 
other priority issues with the minister and was also 
elected as the Chairperson of the Chairperson’s 
Forum. 

During the year under review members of the 
Board and the operations of the constitution of 
SASSETA were suspended, and an Administrator 
appointed for a period of 12 months as directed by 
the Minister of Higher Education and Training in 
terms of section 15 (1) and (2) of the Skills 

Development Act.The accounting authority’s re-
sponsibilities and accountability for the public enti-
ty’s performance and strategic direction is outlined 
below. 

The role of the Administrator

  Take over the role of Accounting Authority of 
    the SASSETA as provided for in the Public 
    Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No 1 of 
1999) a  and the relevant regulations;

  Establish,if necessary, with the Minister’s 
    approval, chambers as provided for in Section 
   12 and 13 of the Act;

  Review the terms and conditions of 
    employment of the Chief Executive Officer, 
    Chief Financial Officer and other employees of 
    the SASSETA where necessary;

  Review general governance policies of the 
    SASSETA in terms of any applicable law;

  Suspend, institute disciplinary proceedings or 
    replace, where it is necessary, any of the offi-
cials 
    of the SASSETA for reasons as contemplated 
    in terms of relevant legislation;

  Consult widely with the relevant stakeholders 
    within the sector in order to adopt a standard 
    constitution of the SASSETA in terms of section 
   13 of the Act and other relevant legislation for 
    approval and publication by the Minister of 
    Higher Education and Training;

  Facilitate the appointment of a new SASSETA 
    Accounting Authority;

  Ensure the management of the SASSETA funds 
    in liaison with the Department of Higher 
    Education and Training using relevant provi-
sions 
    of the Act and as provided for in the Public 
    Finance Management Act, 1999 and the 
    relevant regulations; and

  Make rules relating to SASSETA and 
    chamber  meetings, financial matters, general 
    procurement and administrative matters which 
    are in accordance with the provision of the 
    Constitution of the Republic of South Africa,
   1996, the Act or any other applicable law.

Duties of the Administrator

  The Administrator works closely with the Chief 
    Executive Officer of the SASSETA, the 
    employees of the SASSETA, and the 
    Director-General: Higher Education and Training 
    to establish joint working committees comprising 
    of   the sector specialists and experts

Establish,if necessary, with the Minister’s ap-
proval, chambers as provided for in Sec  tion 
12 and 13 of the Act;

Review the terms and conditions of 
employment of the Chief Executive Officer, 
Chief Financial Officer and other employees of 
the SASSETA where necessary;

Review general governance policies of the 
SASSETA in terms of any applicable law;

Suspend, institute disciplinary proceedings or 
replace, where it is necessary, any of the offi-
cials of the SASSETA for reasons as contem-
plated in terms of relevant legislation;

Consult widely with the relevant stakeholders 
within the sector in order to adopt a standard 
constitution of the SASSETA in terms of sec-
tion 
13 of the Act and other relevant legislation for 
approval and publication by the Minister of 
 Higher Education and Training;

Facilitate the appointment of a new SASSETA 
Accounting Authority;

Ensure the management of the SASSETA 
funds in liaison with the Department of Higher 
Education and Training using relevant pro-
visions of the Act and as provided for in the 
Public Finance Management Act, 1999 and the 
relevant regulations; and

Make rules relating to SASSETA and chamber  
meetings, financial matters, general procure-
ment and administrative matters which are in 
accordance with the provision of the Constitu-
tion of the Republic of South Africa,1996, the 
Act or any other applicable law.

Take over the role of Accounting Authority of 
the SASSETA as provided for in the Public 
Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No 1 of 
1999) a  and the relevant regulations;

The role of the Administrator

The Administrator works closely with the Chief 
Executive Officer of the SASSETA, the em-
ployees of the SASSETA, and the Direc-
tor-General: Higher Education and Training to 
establish joint working committees comprising 
of   the sector specialists and experts

Duties of the Administrator
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  Performs the functions of the SASSETA in 
    terms of the Act, the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 and other relevant legislation;

  Ensures the management of the National Skills  Development Strategy within the SASSETA;

    Ensures, on a monthly basis, the submission of progress reports regarding the effective functioning of the SASSETA   
t   to the Director-General: Higher Education and Training;

   Ensures sufficient funding of all the processes and activities pertaining to the powers and duties as an Administrator  
f    from the SASSETA budget in terms of the relevant legislative requirements;

  Performs any such other functions as may be delegated or instructed by the Minister or Director-General: Higher    Edu   
... Education and Training from time to time;

   Facilitates the overall process and attends to dispute resolution, as well as the management of legal issues as 
     required; and submits a final close out report for the project at the end of the 12 month period of appointment.

 
The Board was active in its role as Accounting Authority from 1 April 2014 to 12 February 2015 when the SETA was 
placed under administration. This suspension of the Board also applied to Board Chambers.and all its committees. 
The chambers were also disbanded due to the administrative process. 

Name

Designation (in 
terms of the 
Public Entity 

Board structure)

Area
 of 

Expertise

Board
Directorships 

(List the 
entities)

Other 
Committees 

or Task 
Teams  

(e.g: Audit 
committee 
/ Ministerial 
task team)

No. of 
Meetings 
attended

Mr Abbey 
Witbooi

CHAIRPERSON
Ministerial Ap-
pointee 2011 * *  None EXCO 10

Mr Bhekinkosi 
Mvovo

Ministerial 
Appointee 2011 * *  None FINREM 5

Mr Robert 
Nogumla

Ministerial 
Appointee 2011 Jan 2015 * *  None DEFENCE 10

MrZanoxolo 
Mpendu

Ministerial 
Appointee 2011 * * None LPQA 10

Ms Lena-Ma-
rie Fourie

Organised 
Labour 
representative

2011 * * None SSP 8

Colonel 
Charles 
Simonse

Organised
 Labour 
representative

2011 * * None ARC, POLIC-
ING, 10

Mr Nicolas 
Maziya

Organised 
Labour 
representative

2011 * *  None EXCO, BAC, 
DAC, DGC 9

Mr Mzwandile 
Makwayiba

Organised Labour 
representative 2011 * * None

EXCO, BAC,  
PRIV SEC,  

DAC
6

Gen.Nombum-
bele Mbekela

Organised 
Employer 
representative

2011 * * None EXCO, 0

Gen-Petra 
Tembe

Organised 
Employer 
representative

2011 June 2014 * * None

EXCO, 
BAC, GOV 
&  STRAT, 

LEGAL

0

Ms Linda 
Bond

Organised 
Employer 
representative

2011 * *  None FINREM, 
CORREC-

TIONS, GOV 
& STRAT

5

Ms Michelle 
Beatson

Organised 
Employer 
representative

2011 * * None ARC, LEGAL 3

Dr Barnet 
Delport

Organised 
Employer 
representative

2011 * * None SSP, LPQA 9

Mr Mpololo 
Masekela

Organised 
Employer 
representative

2011 * * None EXCO, DGC, 
BAC, 10
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*   At the time of publishing the qualifications and areas of expertise of the Board could not be confirmed. 

Composition of The Board
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Committee No. of meetings held No. of members Name of members

EXCO 9 5

A Witbooi
M Makwayiba
N Maziya
M Masekela
B Mvovo

Committee No. of meetings held No. of members Name of members

DG 9 5

M Masekela
N.Maziya
* X Mashukuca
R Sekotlong
S. Hall

Committee No. of meetings held No. of members Name of members

FINREM 9 4

B Mvovo
A Maoko
L Bond
A Sigonyela

Committee No. of meetings held No. of members Name of members

LPQA 4 3
Z Mpendu
B Delport
D Sibisi

Executive Committee

Special EXCO meetings were held to recommend the SSP, Strategic Plan, Annula Performance 
Plan, Annual Financial Statements, Annual Report, Discretionary Grants and the over commitment 
of project expenditure.

Meetings held to resolve projects and approved appointment of suppliers per Chamber.
*   Suspended by employer organisation without replacement.

Discretionary Grant Committee 

Finrem Committee 

LPQA Committee 

Meetings held to deliberate on performance reviews and remuneration.

Made recommendation of accreditation of Training Providers 
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Committee No. of meetings held No. of members Name of members

SSP 9 4

B Delport
M Pieterse
M Kgathi
D Dodge

Committee No. of meetings held No. of members Name of members

BAC 3 3
M Masekela
P Nephawe
N Maziya

SSP Committee   

BAC Committee 

Meetings held to discuss matters relating to the Sector Skills Plan. 

Adjudication of tenders.

Remuneration of Board Members 

Names Remuneration Other allowances Other re-imburse-
ments

Total

Mr Abbey Witbooi                88              285             17              391 

Mr Bhekinkosi Mvovo                63                94             11              168 

Mr Rorbert Nogumla                81                21             52              154 

Mr Zanoxolo Mpendu                81                32               7              119 

Ms Lena-Marie Fourie                74                   6             15                94 

Colonel Charles Simonse                81                86             12              179 

Mr Nicolas Maziya                77                74             32              184 

Mr Mzwandile Makwayiba                67                57               0              124 

* Gen.Nombumbele Mbekela                  -                    -                -                    -   

* Gen-Petra Tembe                  -                    -                 4                  4 

* Ms Linda Bond                  -                    -                 4                  4 

Ms Michelle Beatson                11                  -                 2                13 

Dr Barnet Delport                77                54               5              136 

Mr Mpopolo Masekela                81                82             52              215 

* Government employees in SA Policing Services, Department of Defence and Department of Corrections. 

RISK MANAGEMENT

SASSETA has a risk management policy  in place, and has developed a risk management strategy during 
the 2014/15 financial period. An Audit and Risk Management Committee advises the SETA on risk manage-
ment, especially the mitigation of unacceptable levels of risk, and to independently monitor the effectiveness 
of risk management within SASSETA. 

SASSETA has made commendable progress in the management of risks; with bi-monthly updates of risk 
registers, and the development of a risk management plan as part of its strategy to effectively discharge the 
requirements of the risk management strategy. Risk management is also embedded in the activities of each 
manager with management taking ownership of the process in their respective departments.
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* Government employees in SA Policing Services, Department of Defence and Department of Corrections. 

RISK MANAGEMENT

SASSETA has a risk management policy  in place, and has developed a risk management strategy during 
the 2014/15 financial period. An Audit and Risk Management Committee advises the SETA on risk 
management, especially the mitigation of unacceptable levels of risk, and to independently monitor the 
effectiveness of risk management within SASSETA. 

SASSETA has made commendable progress in the management of risks; with bi-monthly updates of risk 
registers, and the development of a risk management plan as part of its strategy to effectively discharge 
the requirements of the risk management strategy. Risk management is also embedded in the activities of 
each manager with management taking ownership of the process in their respective departments.

INTERNAL CONTROL UNIT
SASSETA does not have an internal control unit. The establishment and monitoring of an effective internal 
control measures is the responsibility of management. The internal audit function tests and evaluates the 
effectiveness of internal controls and reports to the Audit and Risk Committee during the year.

INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDIT COMMITTEES

SASSETA outsourced the function of internal audit. The function reports to the Audit Committee on the 
internal audit purpose, authority, responsibility, and performance relative to its plan. This includes sig-
nificant risk exposures and control issues identified, corporate governance issues, and other matters as 
requested by the Audit Committee. Key activities and objectives of the internal audit function are the Audit 
Coverage Plan:
 
  Review of the adequacy and effectiveness of internal control, risk management and governance 

   processes 

  Provision of reasonable assurance on the integrity of financial and operational information

  Evaluation of management controls for the prevention and detection of fraud

  Provision of a source of information, as appropriate, regarding instances of fraud, corruption, unethical 
    behaviour and irregularities

  Evaluation of the effectiveness of the entire system of risk management and provide recommendations  
f   for improvement.

Internal Audit

INTERNAL CONTROL UNIT
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Summary of audit work done by Internal Audit.

Internal Audit carried out its audit assignments during the year in line with the approved Internal Audit Cov-
erage Plan, and provided assurance in Skills Implementation and Monitoring, Supply Chain Management, 
Human Resources Management, Information Technology, Finance, a review of the Strategic Planning pro-
cess, Skills Research, the audit of quarterly performance reports, and a follow-up audit on previous audits. 
The term of office of the Committee members came to an end on the 30th April 2015. New Committee 
members were appointed during May 2015 and commenced exercising their duties immediately. The table 
below sets out relevant information on the audit committee members.

Name Qualifications Internal or external If internal, 
position in 
the public 
entity

Date ap-
pointed

Date Re-
signed

No. of 
Meet-
ings 
attended

Mr V Kweyama CIA, CSSA External Independent - 2011 12 Feb 2015 6

Mr K Mduntshane   CA(SA) External Independent - 2011 12 Feb 2015 6

Mr S Gouden CA(SA) External Independent - 2011 12 Feb 2015 5

Col. C Simonse Board Member External Labour 
Representative 

- 2011 12 Feb 2015 6

Ms M Beatson Board Member Employer - 2011 12 Feb 2015 1

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

SASSETA put in place the regulatory Compliance 
Framework, and developed policies and proce-
dures to guide operations. The policies and pro-
cedures were reviewed during the year to ensure 
compliance with laws and regulations.

Independent assurance of compliance with laws 
and regulations is obtained through the work of 
Internal Audit, compliance audits conducted by 
other government institutions such as SAQA, 
QCTO, and DHET, and the regulatory audit con-
ducted by the AGSA. New developments and 
changes to skills development legislation are also 
communicated to the broader stakeholder base 
through workshops, bulk- email, SASSETA’s web-
site etc.

Fraud and Corruption

A Fraud Prevention Policy and Plan, where pro-
cedures for reporting fraud are outlined and re-
sponsibilities are assigned for prevention and de-
tection of fraud is in place. SASSETA also has a 
dedicated toll-free whistle-blowing number which 
is managed by an independent service provider. 
The Whistle Blower’s number is accessible to in-
ternal and external stakeholders to report suspi-
cious behaviour and suspected incidents of irreg-
ularities which might lead to fraudulent behaviour. 
Cases reported through the Whistle-Blower were 
followed-up during the period under review and 
a forensic investigation was launched on certain 
reported cases.

Minimising Conflict of Interest

To minimise the risk of conflict of interest in pro-
curement, staff within SCM declare any interest 
they might have in relation to transactions entered 
into with service providers. A declaration of interest 
form is signed by members of bid committees be-
fore the commencement of the meetings.

SASSETA’s Supply Chain Management Policy 
outlines the process to be followed where conflict 
of interest has been identified. SCM and any other 
role players implementing SCM task must sign the 
Code of Conduct as per practice no 4 of 2003

In addition SASSETA requires all staff members 
to disclose their financial interests on an annual 
basis.

Code of Conduct

The enactment of the SASSETA’s code of conduct 
policy ensures that the business of the SETA is 
conducted in the interest of SASSETA, in confor-
mity with the Constitution of SASSETA, the legis-
lation and regulations governing the SETA’s activi-
ties, as well as ethical business practise. The code 
of conduct is applicable to all employees. During 
the year under review, the Board was dissolved for 
failure to comply with the Skills Development Act 
and the PFMA, SCM policies and other legislations 
relevant to the SETAs environment. Contravention 
of the code of conduct constitutes an offense which 
is dealt 
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with in accordance with the provisions of the 
labour laws

The following are part of the Board Secretary’s 
duties. 

   Minute taking service for SASSETA board 
     and Executive and all other committees.

   Providing governance advice to the committees

  Providing decisions lists with relevant action 
    list of meetings and communication of such 
    to members.
 
  Advising of Committees with regards to 

    legal compliance within the SETA. 

  Performing the secretariat functions outlined 
    in the King lll, the companies Act and 
    requirement of the board

  Acting as communication channel for 
    board members
 
  Tracking and co ordination for Board 

    request between board and management.

  Keeping Board and executive fully updated 
    on existing and new legislative requirements

SASSETA knows that its responsible behavior 
towards its stakeholders creates internal and 
external value. In the next financial year SAS-
SETA will strengthen this value through strong 
corporate governance, improving key stakehold-
er relationships, finding innovative uses of our 
technology for positive social and environmen-
tal impact, striving for the highest ethical stan-
dards, developing our people, pursuing a zero 
harm policy and engaging in our communities.
 
Audit and Risk Committee Report
We are pleased to present our report for the fi-
nancial year ended 31 March 2015.

Audit Committee Responsibility
The Audit and Risk Committee reports that it has 
complied with the responsibilities arising from 
Section 51 (1) (a) (ii) of the Public Finance Man-
agement Act and Treasury Regulation 3.1.13.  
The Committee has adopted an appropriate for-
mal terms of reference as its audit committee 
charter, has regulated its affairs in compliance 
with this charter and has discharged all its re-
sponsibilities as contained therein.

Audit and Risk Committee Members and Atten-
danceThe Committee consists of the members 
listed hereunder and should meet at least six 
times per annum as per the approved Charter.  
During the financial year six meetings were held.

Name of members Number of meetings 
attended

Mr Velile Kweyama 
(Chairperson)

6

Mr Sarthie Gounden 5

Ms Khanyisa Mdutshane 6

Mr Charles Simonse * 6

Ms Michelle Beatson * 1

* Board representatives

The term of office of the Committee members 
came to an end on the 30th April 2015 and the last 
meeting was in November 2014. New Committee 
members were appointed during May 2015 and 
commenced exercising their duties immediately.

The Effectiveness of Internal Control
The review of the effectiveness of the system 
of internal controls by the former Audit and Risk 
Committee is informed by reports submitted by 
external audit, internal audit and management. 
The development and maintenance of an effec-
tive internal control system is the responsibility of 
management. The Audit and Risk Committee has drawn the 

attention of management to significant issues 
that have been raised in the previous years’ 
audit reports and management reports of the 
Auditor General. Management have expressed 
their commitment in dealing with these issues.
   
The Committee is satisfied that a system of in-
ternal controls has been put in place by  and 
that these controls have functioned to some 
extent during the period under review. The Au-
dit and Risk Committee and the organisation 
is aware that there is a need for improvement 
in the internal controls and the adherence to 
these controls, the Audit and Risk Committee 
have made various commitments to assisting  
in this regard.

SASSETA knows that its responsible behavior 
towards its stakeholders creates internal and 
external value. In the next financial year SAS-
SETA will strengthen this value through strong 
corporate governance, improving key stakehold-
er relationships, finding innovative uses of our 
technology for positive social and environmental 
impact, striving for the highest ethical standards, 
developing our people, pursuing a zero harm pol-
icy and engaging in our communities.

The Effectiveness of Internal Control

Social Responsibility

Board Secretariat Function

Social Responsibility

Audit and Risk Committee Report

Audit Committee Responsibility
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Name of members Number of meetings 
attended

Mr Velile Kweyama 
(Chairperson)

6

Mr Sarthie Gounden 5

Ms Khanyisa Mdutshane 6

Mr Charles Simonse * 6

Ms Michelle Beatson * 1

A risk assessment was carried out during the year 
under review and the internal audit plan was 
developed based on this risk assessment. 
Various areas have been included in the Internal 
Audit plan during the year. The Committee have 
raised various concerns about the effectiveness 
of the Internal Audit function as only the report on 
the Governance audit was presented to the 
Committee for review.

The following reports were not yet tabled by the 
time the term of the Committee came to an end 
as they were awaiting management’s comments 
as at the date of the last meeting: 

  Supply Chain Management audit
  Information Technology audit 

   (General controls review) and
  Human Resources Management audit.

   The following are still areas of concern, although    
mmanagement has made some progress in terms     
ofof addressing them: 
  Follow up of previous Auditor General and 

   Internal Audit Action Plans
  Commitments 
  High turnover of Senior Executives
  Record Keeping and Management Systems
  Information Technology environment impacting 

o  on the integrity of information
  Management and monitoring of risk
  Management and monitoring of projects
  Quality of in-year reporting with respects 

   to per-determined objectives

In-Year Management and Monthly/
Quarterly Report

The former Audit and Risk Committee has noted 
the content and quality of the monthly / quarterly 
financial and performance reports prepared and 
issued by  during the year under review, in com-
pliance with the statutory reporting framework. 

Evaluation of Financial Statements

The Audit and Risk Committee that served for the 
2014/15 financial year could not meet and review 
the unaudited financial statements and perfor-
mance report for 2014/15 financial year with man-
agement.
 
The new Committee performed a review of the 
annual financial and performance reports prior to 
submission to the Auditor-General which included 
amongst others, review of the accounting policies 
and practices, and any changes thereto, the 
entity’s compliance with legal and regulatory pro-
visions and the information contained in the annu-
al performance report.
The new Committee therefore recommended the 
Annual Financial Statements and Performance 
Report for approval and inclusion in the Annual 
Report.

Auditor General’s Report

The Committee has reviewed ’s implementation plan 
for audit issues raised in the prior year. The Committee 
satisfied itself with the plan, but have communicated 
concerns to management in relation to the speed with 
which agreed upon action plans are implemented.

In the midst of all the above, the Committee concurs 
and accepts the conclusions of the Auditor-Gener-
al on the annual financial statements and is of the 
opinion that the audited annual financial statements 
be accepted and read together with the report of the 
Auditor-General.

Appreciation

The Committee would like to take this opportunity 
of expressing its sincere appreciation to the Board, 
Chief Executive Officer, the management of , Internal 
Audit and the Auditor-General for their support and 
co-operation during the year under review.

 

In-Year Management and Monthly/
Quarterly Report

Evaluation of Financial Statements

Auditor General’s Report

Appreciation



 
HUMAN 
RESOURCE 
MANAGEMENT
Part D

SASSETA  ANNUAL REPORT 2015 48



SASSETA  ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015 49

 

Overview of HR matters at the public 
entity
The Human Resource Department implements 
strategic and progressive human resources 
practices. The unit maintains a dedicated focus 
on internal customer service and continuous im-
provement, and remains committed to fostering 
an environment that sustains SASSETA’s mis-
sion, vision and values throughout the organi-
sation. This is done by being a knowledgeable, 
approachable and professional resource in pro-
viding quality services in the areas of:

  Recruitment and Retention
  Organisational Development
  Learning and Development 
  Remuneration and Benefits 
  Performance Management
  Employee Relations 

The Human Resources Department develops and 
communicates sound policies and procedures 
that balance the needs of the SETA’s accounting 
authority, management and employees. 
SASSETA complies with all the applicable 
employment legislations of South Africa.

Priorities for the year under review and the impact 

For the year under review the HR department im-
plemented the reviewed organisational structure 
as well as the revised performance management 
process. 

Enforce planning framework and key strategies to 
attract and recruit a skilled and capable workforce

Key and critical positions were identified and the 
process of filling these positions is underway. The 
Recruitment and Selection Policy is being amend-
ed to incorporate internal promotions and 
transfers. This will ensure that readily available 
skills are effectively utilised.

 
All employees sign performance agreements and 
get assessed on the agreed performance stan-
dards twice a year, i.e. mid-term and final 
assessment. The top 20 percent of exceptional 
performers were awarded performance bonuses 
during the period under review.

Employee wellness programmes 
SASSETA strives to maintain a healthy work 
environment via its Wellness Programmes. The 
overall staff engagement, in all services offered 
by the Employees Wellness Programme, 
is satisfactory. Monthly wellness communication 
and brochures to staff members supplement the 
Employee Wellness Programme.

Policy development
All Policies are reviewed annually and, after approv-
al by the relevant authority, they are communicated 
to all staff members.

Highlight achievements
The following achievements were considered key 
events for Human Resources 

  Filling of the following critical positions:

    -  COO
    -  GCR Officer
    -  HR Strategic Support Manager 
    -  Board Secretariat.

  The election of a new Employment Equity Forum   
by bystaff. The Forum partners with management to 
momonitor the implementation of EE initiatives.

  On Health and Safety: Only minor injuries were 
repreported in the year under review. There were no     
fat fatalities, reportable injuries or serious 
     work-related incidents. 

Challenges faced by the public entity

  The SETA’s re-accreditation process
  Non-availability and attrition of scarce skills to 

    support the organisation. 
    In order to mitigate the above, staff members are 
   encouraged to continue performing at the best of     
th their abilities. The latest developments with regard 
to to   the administration are also shared with staff 
m members.

Future HR plans and goals
To ensure that critical positions are filled with 
suitably qualified individuals. 
The HR department needs to become: 

  Strategic Partners (Transition from being 
    operational to being strategic)
  Employee champions
  Change agents
  Administrative experts

This will ensure that the department moves away 
from being just operational, but instead, becomes a 
more strategically focused unit. There is a need for 
the HR department to understand the entire 
business of SASSETA. Continuous staff training is 
also encouraged to foster system thinking.  
 

Priorities for the year under review 
and the impact of these priorities

Enforce planning framework and key 
strategies to attract and recruit a skilled and 
capable workforce

Employee performance management framework

Overview of HR matters
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Programme/
activity/objective

Total Expen-
diture for the 

entity (R’000)

Personnel 
Expenditure 

(R’000)

Personnel exp. 
as a % of total  

exp. 
No. of employees

Average per-
sonnel cost 

per employee 
(R’000)

CEO 11,348 1,711 15% 6 285

COO 1,679 1,523 91% 3 508

SIM 381,660 13,417 4% 36 373

SRR 37,691 10,905 29% 34 321

Corporate Services 23,805 9,954 42% 23 433

Finance 27,458 7,845 29% 18 436

Total 483,640 45,356

Personnel Cost by programme

Personnel cost by salary band

Performance Rewards 

Level 
Personnel 

Expenditure 
(R’000)

% of personnel 
exp. to total 

personnel cost 
(R’000)

No. of employees
Average personnel 
cost per employee 

(R’000)

Top Management 915 2.02% 2 457

Senior Management 5,549 12.23% 6 925

Professional qualified 11,535 25.43% 18 641

Skilled 10,875 23.98% 23 473

Semi-skilled 15,795 34.83% 66 239

Unskilled 687 1.51% 5 137

Total 45,356 100.00% 120

Level Performance rewards in 
(R’000)

Personnel Expenditure 
(R’000)

% of performance re-
wards  to total personnel 
cost (R’000)

Top Management - - -

Senior Management - - -

Professional qualified - - -

Skilled 465 45,356 1.03

Semi-skilled - - -

Unskilled - - -

Total 465 45,356 1.07

HUMAN RESOURCE OVERSIGHT STATISTICS 

The following tables set out the Human Resources information aligned with the 
Annual Financial Statements 

120
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Training Costs 

Employment and vacancies

Training 
programmes

Personnel 
Expenditure 
(R’000)

Training 
Expenditure
(R’000)

Training 
Expenditure as 
a % of 
employee cost.

No. of 
employees 
trained

Average  
training  cost 
per employee

SHE REP 
Training

45,356 12 0.03 8 1

First Aid Training 
Level 1 & 2 

45,356 9 0.02 10 1

Finance & 
Remuneration 
Committee 
Workshop

45,356 15 0.03 8 2

Employment 
Equity Committee 
Workshop

45,356 45 0.1 10 5

Employment 
Equity Committee 
Workshop

45,356 6 0.01 10 1

First Aid Training 45,356 20 0.05 10 2

Wellness Training 45,356 26 0.06 8 3

Occupational 
Health & Safety

45,356 29 0.07 8 4

Sector Skills 
Conference

45,356 11 0.02 1 10

Departments 2013/14 
No. of 
Employees

2014/15 
Approved 
Posts

2014/15
No. of 
Employees

2014/15 
Vacancies

% of vacancies

CEO’s Office 3 3 4 - -

Skills Imple-
mentation and 
Monitoring

28 37 35 7 20

Skills Planning, 
Research and 
Reporting

28 31 32 7 21.87

Finance 10 17 16 4 25

Corporate 
Services

15 22 20 6 30

Total 84 110 107 24 22.42

Level 2013/14 
No. of 
Employees

2013/14 Ap-
proved Posts

2014/15
No. of Employees

2014/15 
Vacancies

% of vacancies

Top Manage-
ment

- 1 2 - -

Senior Manage-
ment

3 4 3 2 66

Professional 
qualified

8 16 10 6 60

Skilled 18 32 31 12 46

Semi-skilled 53 61 56 4 7

Unskilled 2 2 5 0 0

TOTAL 84 116 107 24 22.42%
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Reasons for staff leaving 

Labour Relations: Misconduct and disciplinary action

The following positions were filled, albeit the incumbents resigned during the period under review: 
Board Secretariat and Supply Chain Manager. The positions of the Chief Operations Officer and 
Governance, Compliance and Risk Officer have been filled. 

Most of the positions have been vacant since the beginning of the financial year. The normal recruitment 
processes were put in place to attract suitably qualified individuals to fill these vacant positions. 
Fixed-term contractors were appointed in critical positions while the recruitment process was underway. 

Employment changes
Provide information on changes in employment over the financial year and Turnover rates 

Salary Band Employment at 
beginning of period

Appointments Terminations Employment at end of 
the period

Top Management 1 1 - 2

Senior Management 4 1 2 3

Professional 
qualified

7 7 4 10

Skilled 25 3 3 25

Semi-skilled 53 11 2 62

Unskilled 2 3 - 5

Total 92 26 11 107

Total number of staff members including interns is 120

Reason for leaving Number % of total number of of staff leaving

Death - -

Resignation 6 5.6

Dismissal - -

Retirement - -

Ill health - -

Expiry of contract 3 2.8

Other 2 1.86

Total 11 10.2

The employees left the organisation for career growth and business opportunities. In order to replace 
these staff members, internal advertisements were placed for junior positions, and for senior positions 
advertisements were placed both internally and externally.

Nature of disciplinary Action Number 

Verbal Warning -

Written Warning -

Final Written warning 1

Dismissal -
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Equity Target and Employment Equity Status 

SASSETA strives to attract and employ individuals who will assist it to achieve the set employment equity 
targets. The challenge that the organisation faces is the lack of suitably qualified individuals from the 
designated groups and the lack of interest shown by such groups to join SASSETA.

Level MALE

African Coloured Indian White

Current Target Current Target Current Target Current Target

Top Management - - - - - - - -

Senior Management 2 - - - - - - -

Professional qualified 5 5

Skilled 14 - - - - - - -

Semi-skilled 7 - - - - - - -

Unskilled 1 - - - - - - -

TOTAL 29 5 - - - - - -

Level FEMALE
African Coloured Indian White
Current Target Current Target Current Target Current Target

Top Management 1 - - - - - 1 -

Senior Management 1 - - - - - - -

Professional qualified 3 2 - 1 1 1 1 1

Skilled 17 - - - - - - -

Semi-skilled 49 - - - - - - -

Unskilled 4 - - - - - - -

TOTAL 75 2 - 1 1 1 2 1

Level Disabled Staff

Male Female

Current Target Current Target

Top Management
-

- - -

Senior Management - - - -

Professional qualified - - - -

Skilled - - - -

Semi-skilled - - 1 -

Unskilled - - - -

TOTAL - - 1 -

The applications received do not fit the job profiles and/or the applications from the targeted groups are not 
forthcoming.

*As per our EE Plan, our target for female at Senior Management level is 2 irrespective of race.

Although applications from people with disabilities are encouraged when positions are advertised, we 
do not receive such. SASSETA plans to work closely with agencies and others dealing with people with 
disabilities to grow awareness of our need. Furthermore, a new 3 year Employment Equity Plan (2015 – 
2018) has been developed.
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Report on the financial 
statements

Introduction
1.  I have audited the financial statements of the 
Safety and Security Sector Education and Train-
ing Authority (SASSETA) set out on pages 59 to 
102, which comprise the statement of financial 
position as at 31 March 2015, the statement of 
financial performance, statement of changes in 
net assets, cash flow statement and the state-
ment of comparison of budget information with 
actual information for the year then ended, as 
well as the notes, comprising a summary of sig-
nificant accounting policies and other explanato-
ry information. 

Accounting authority’s responsibility for 
the financial statements
2. The accounting authority is responsible for the 
preparation and fair presentation of these 
financial statements in accordance with the South 
African Standards of Generally Recognised 
Accounting Practice (SA Standards of GRAP) 
and the requirements of the Public Finance 
Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 
of 1999) (PFMA) and the Skills Development Act, 
1998 (Act No.97 of 1998) (SDA), and for such 
internal control as the accounting authority 
determines is necessary to enable the prepa-
ration of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.

Auditor-general’s responsibility
3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these financial statements based on my audit. I 
conducted my audit in accordance with Interna-
tional Standards on Auditing. Those standards 
require that I comply with ethical requirements, 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain rea-
sonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures to 
obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks 
of material misstatement of the financial state-
ments, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers in-
ternal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in order to design audit procedures that are ap-
propriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effec-
tiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 

accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates made by management, as well 
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
audit opinion.

Opinion
6. In my opinion, the financial statements present fair-
ly, in all material respects, the financial position of the 
SASSETA as at 31 March 2015 and its financial per-
formance and cash flows for the year then ended, in 
accordance with the SA Standards of GRAP and the 
requirements of the PFMA and SDA.

Emphasis of matter 
7. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is 
not modified in respect of this matter.

Financial sustainability
8. Note 18 and 29 to the financial statements indicates 
that the public entity had available discretionary grant 
reserves of R79,742 million as at the year ended 31 
March 2015 and, as at that date, the discretionary 
grant commitments exceeded the available discre-
tionary grant reserves by an amount R292,773 million, 
resulting in the entity being materially over-committed 
at year-end.  These conditions, along with other mat-
ters as set forth in note 29, indicate the existence of a 
material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on 
the public entity’s financial sustainability and to fully 
execute its mandate in future.

Additional matter 
9. I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is 
not modified in respect of these matters.

SETA re-licencing
10. In April 2011, the Minister of Higher Education and 
Training extended the licences of the SETAs for an 
additional period of five years expiring on 31 March 
2016. As at the date of this report, the Minister has not 
yet made a pronouncement on renewal of the SETA 
licences beyond 31 March 2016.

SETA administration
11. The director-general of the Department of Higher 
Education and Training placed the SASSETA under 
administration, thereby suspending all members of 
the accounting authority and the constitution of the 
SETA. An administrator was appointed to take over 
the SETA’s administration with effect from 12 Febru-
ary 2015.

Report of the Auditor-General to Parliament on the Safety and Security 
Sector Education and Training Authority
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Report on other legal and regulatory 
requirements
12. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of 
South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA) and 
the general notice issued in terms thereof, I have 
a responsibility to report findings on the reported 
performance information against predetermined 
objectives for selected programmes presented in 
the annual performance report, compliance with 
legislation and internal control. The objective of 
my tests was to identify reportable findings as de-
scribed under each subheading but not to gather 
evidence to express assurance on these matters. 
Accordingly, I do not express an opinion or conclu-
sion on these matters.

Predetermined objectives
13. I performed procedures to obtain evidence 
about the usefulness and reliability of the reported 
performance information for the following selected 
programmes presented in the annual performance 
report of the public entity for the year ended 31 
March 2015:
•    

•    

14. I evaluated the reported performance informa-
tion against the overall criteria of usefulness and 
reliability. 

15. I evaluated the usefulness of the reported per-
formance information to determine whether it was 
presented in accordance with the National Trea-
sury’s annual reporting principles and whether 
the reported performance was consistent with the 
planned programmes. I further performed tests to 
determine whether indicators and targets were 
well defined, verifiable, specific, measurable, time 
bound and relevant, as required by the National 
Treasury’s Framework for managing programme 
performance information (FMPPI).

16. I assessed the reliability of the reported 
performance information to determine whether it 
was valid, accurate and complete.

17. The material findings in respect of the selected 
programmes are as follows:

Programme 4.1: Skills development and 
administration

Reliability of reported performance 
information
18. The FMPPI requires auditees to have appro-
priate systems to collect, collate, verify and store 
performance information to ensure valid, accurate 
and complete reporting of actual achievements 
against planned objectives, indicators and tar-
gets. Significantly important targets in relation to 
the overall mandate of the public entity were not 
reliable when compared to the source information 

or evidence provided. This was due to a lack of 
adequate technical indicator descriptions for the 
accurate measurement, recording and monitoring 
of reported achievements.

Programme 4.2: Skills implementation 
and monitoring

Reliability of reported performance 
information
19. The FMPPI requires auditees to have appro-
priate systems to collect, collate, verify and store 
performance information to ensure valid, accu-
rate and complete reporting of actual achieve-
ments against planned objectives, indicators and 
targets. Overall, 30% of the significantly import-
ant targets in relation to the overall mandate of 
the public entity were not reliable because I was 
unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evi-
dence for 21% of the significantly important tar-
gets. In addition, 9% of the significantly important 
targets were not valid, accurate and complete 
when compared to the source information or evi-
dence provided. This was due to the fact that the 
auditee could not provide sufficient appropriate 
evidence in support of the reported performance 
information and a lack of frequent review of the 
validity and accuracy of reported achievements 
against source documentation.

Additional matters
20. I draw attention to the following matters:

Achievement of planned targets
21. Refer to the annual performance report on 
pages 22 to 38 for information on the achieve-
ment of the planned targets for the year. This 
information should be considered in the context 
of the material findings on the reliability of the re-
ported performance information for the selected 
programmes reported in paragraphs 18 and19 of 
this report.

Adjustment of material misstatements
22. We identified material misstatements in the 
annual performance report submitted for auditing 
in respect of the reported performance informa-
tion of programme 4.1 Skills development and 
administration. As management subsequently 
corrected only some of the misstatements, I iden-
tified material findings on the reliability of the re-
ported performance information.
 
Compliance with legislation
23. I performed procedures to obtain evidence 
that the public entity had complied with applicable 
legislation regarding financial matters, financial 
management and other related matters. My find-
ings on material compliance with specific matters 
in key legislation, as set out in the general notice 
issued in terms of the PAA, are as follows:
 

Programme 4.2: Skills implementation and 
monitoring on pages 24 to 31.

Programme 4.1: Skills development and 
adminis tration on pages 22 to 23 
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Annual financial statements
24. The financial statements submitted for au-
diting were not prepared in accordance with the 
prescribed financial reporting framework as re-
quired by section 55(1)(a) of the PFMA. Material 
misstatements of trade and other payables from 
exchange transactions and related expenditure, 
discretionary grant commitments, irregular ex-
penditure, fruitless and wasteful expenditure, 
financial instruments and cash flow statement 
identified by the auditors in the submitted finan-
cial statements were subsequently corrected, 
resulting in the financial statements receiving an 
unqualified audit opinion. 
                             
Expenditure management
25. The accounting authority did not take effec-
tive steps to prevent irregular expenditure and 
fruitless and wasteful expenditure, as required by 
section 51(1)(b)(ii) of the PFMA.

Asset management
26. Proper control systems to safeguard and 
maintain assets were not implemented, as re-
quired by sections 50(1)(a) and 51(1)(c) of the 
PFMA.

Consequence management
27. Allegations of financial misconduct against 
members of the accounting authority were not 
investigated, as required by Treasury Regulation 
33.1.3.

Procurement and contract management
28. Goods and services with a transaction value 
below R500 000 were procured without obtain-
ing the required price quotations, as required by 
Treasury Regulation 16A6.1.

29. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could 
not be obtained that goods and services of a 
transaction value above R500 000 were procured 
by inviting competitive bids and that the account-
ing authority only approved deviations if it was im-
practical to invite competitive bids, as required by 
Treasury Regulations 16A6.1 and 16A6.4.

Internal control
30. I considered internal control relevant to my 
audit of the financial statements, annual perfor-
mance report and compliance with legislation. 
The matters reported below are limited to the sig-
nificant internal control deficiencies that resulted 
in the findings on the annual performance report 
and the findings on non-compliance with legisla-
tion included in this report.

Leadership
31. Leadership was ineffective and did not act in 
the best interests of the public entity in managing 
the financial affairs of the public entity. Key finan-
cial controls relating to project approvals were not 
instituted, resulting in the entity being financially 
materially overcommitted.
  

32. There was inadequate oversight by manage-
ment and the accounting authority in the areas of 
financial and performance reporting and compli-
ance with laws and regulation. As a result, man-
agement failed to ensure accurate financial and 
performance information and full compliance with 
laws and regulations. The monitoring of the imple-
mentation of the action plan to address prior year 
audit findings was also inaquate.

33. Instabilities within operational leadership, de-
ficiencies in human resources management prac-
tices followed by the entity and lack of effective 
performance management system resulted in inad-
equate resources being in place for the execution 
of operational activities and performance not being 
effectively monitored. Consequently, effective cor-
rective action and consequence management was 
not instituted as a result of ineffective human re-
source management during the period.

34. The entity did not implement key monitoring 
and evaluation controls to ensure that claims are 
verified prior to effecting payments as per the re-
quirements of the grant regulations.

Financial and performance management
35. The entity did not have adequate controls for 
the maintenance of accurate and complete infor-
mation that supports the reported financial infor-
mation and performance information contained in 
the financial statements and annual performance 
report respectively  as evidenced by the material 
misstatements identified that had to be corrected.

36. Daily and monthly processing and reconciling 
of transactions relating to financial and perfor-
mance reporting were not fully adequate and ef-
fective. Existing internal controls and review mea-
sures were not adequate to ensure that financial 
and performance information reported is accurate 
and complete.

Other reports

Investigations
37. An independent consulting firm performed an 
investigation into travel expenses at the request 
of the public entity. The investigation covered the 
period from 13 May 2014 to 30 September 2014 
and was initiated based on an allegation of pos-
sible misappropriation of the public entity’s assets 
by employees. The scope of the investigation was 
to determine if the expenditure was incurred in 
line with SASSETA’s travel policy and in line with 
the PFMA. The investigation was concluded on 
30 September 2014 and recommended that dis-
ciplinary proceedings being instituted against thir-
teen employees. At the date of this report no disci-
plinary proceedings have been instituted.

38. The above investigation also covered a review 
of a previous investigation that had not been final-
ised. The review was initiated to assess the ade-
quacy of the previous investigation, and to make 
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recommendations based on their findings. The initial investigation related to contracts with service provid-
ers who were not accredited to provide training to learners. The review was concluded on 30 September 
2014 and it was recommended that the initial report be submitted to the South African Police Service for 
further investigation and to the Director of Public Prosecutions.

39. At the request of the entity, an independent consulting firm performed an investigation that covered the 
period 2012-13 to 2013-14. The investigation was initiated based on allegations of possible misappropri-
ation of the public entity’s assets through banking detail changes. The outcome of the investigation was 
expected during the 2015-16 financial year.

29 July 2015
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Safety and Security Sector Education and Training Authority

Annual Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 March 2015

Audited

The Annual Financial Statements FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 March 2015, set out on pages 60 to 
102, have been approved by the Accounting Authority in terms of section 51(1) (f) of the Public Fi-

nance Management Act (PFMA), No 1 of 1999 as amended, and are signed on their behalf by: 

________________________________  ______________________________ 

Ms M. Moroka Ms J. Irish - Qhobosheane
Chief Executive Officer Administrator
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Safety and Security Sector Education and Training Authority
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

 2014/15  2013/14 

 Note  R’000  R’000 

REVENUE

Non-exchange Revenue 299 041 288 866
Skills Development Levy: 
Income 2

                   
290,955 

                   
284,083 

Skills Development Levy: 
Penalties and Interest 3

                       
8,087 

                       
4,783 

Exchange Revenue 9,992 10,726

Investment Income 4
                       

9,710 
                     

10,305 

Other income 5
                          

283 
                          

421 

TOTAL REVENUE
                   

309,034 
                   

299,592 

EXPENSES
Employer grant and project 
expenses 6

                  
(405,642)

                  
(170,139)

Administration expenses 7
                    

(77,998)
                    

(78,106)

TOTAL EXPENSES
                  

(483,640)
                  

(248,245)

NET (DEFICIT) / SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR 1
                  

(174,606)
                     

51,347 

 

RESTATED
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Safety and Security Sector Education and Training Authority
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 MARCH 2015     RESTATED

 2014/15  2013/14 

Note  R’000  R’000 

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets 5,111 3,711

Property, plant and equipment 8
                       

4,986 
                       

3,516 

Intangible assets 9
                          

126 
                          

195 

                       
5,111 

                       
3,711 

Current Assets 134,431 283,983

Accounts receivable from non - exchange 
transactions 10

                       
7,804 

                       
4,750 

Accounts receivable from exchange transactions 10
                       

1,441 
                       

3,252 

Inventory 11
                          

417 
                          

842 

Cash and cash equivalents 12
                   

124,769 
                   

275,139 

                   
134,431 

                   
283,983 

TOTAL ASSETS
                   

139,542 
                   

287,694 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities 54,317 27,863

Trade and other payables from non exchange 
transactions 14

                     
10,973 

                       
4,764 

Trade and other payables from exchange trans-
actions 14

                     
41,145 

                     
22,105 

Current portion of finance lease obligation 13
                       

1,161 
                            

79 

Provisions 15
                       

1,038 
                          

915 

                     
54,317 

                     
27,863 

TOTAL LIABILITIES
                     

54,317 
                     

27,863 

NET ASSETS
                     

85,225 
                   

259,831 

RESTATED
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2014/15
Funds and Reserves R’000 R’000

Administration reserve
                       

5,111 
                       

3,711 

Employer grant reserve
                          

372 
                          

618 

Discretionary reserve
                     

79,742 
                   
255,503 

TOTAL FUNDS AND RESERVES
                     

85,225 
                   
259,832 

TOTAL NET FUNDS AND LIABILITIES
                   
139,542 

                   
287,695 

RESTATED

R’000 R’000
2014/15 2013/14



SASSETA  ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015 64

Safety and Security Sector Education and Training Authority
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

 Notes      

 R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 

Balance as at 1 April 2013
                          

4,040 
                                

-   
                   

204,070 
                             

-   
                   

208,110 

Net deficit as per Statement of Financial 
Performance

                                
-   

                                
-   

                             
-   

                     
51,347 

                     
51,347 

Allocation of unappropriated surplus                                            
                        

18,814 
                        

19,125 
                     

13,408 
                    

(51,347)
                             

-   
Excess reserves transferred to Discre-
tionary reserve

                      
(19,321)

                      
(18,507)

                     
37,828 

                             
-   

                             
-   

Prior year error
                                

-   
                                

-   
                             

-   
                             

-   
                             

-   

Balance at 31 March 2014
                          

3,533 
                             

618 
                   

255,306                    -                               
259,457 

Prior Period Error

     Depreciation due to re-assessment of  
u   useful lives of assets

                              
(17) 

                          
162 -                           

145 
 -   Amortisation due to re-assessment of  
u   useful lives of assets

                             
195 

                            
70 -                           

265 
 -   Retained Earnings (Discretionary 
Gra Grants Expenditure relating to 
2012/13 financial year

 -                             
(35)  -                             

(35) 

Restated balance as at 31 March 2014
                          

3,711 
                             

618 
                   

255,503 
                             

- 
                   

259,832 

Net surplus per Statement of Financial 
Performance

                                
-   

                                
-   

                             
-   

                  
(174,606)

                  
(174,606)

Allocation of unappropriated surplus                                             
                      

(23,904)
                        

13,301 
                  

(163,773)
                   

174,606 
                             

-   
Excess reserves transferred to Discre-
tionary reserve

                        
25,304 

                      
(13,277)

                    
(12,027)

                             
-   

                             
-   

Balance at 28 February 2015
                          

5,111 
                             

372 
                     

79,742                               
-                         

85,225 

An employer grant reserve of 372,000 (2013/14:R618,000) is also disclosed in note 17.2 for further details.

Administration 
Reserve

Employer  
Grant                      

Reserve 

Discretionary 
Reserve 

Unappropriated 
surplus

 Total 

1

1

Retained Earnings (Discretionary 
Grants Expenditure relating to 2012/13 
financial year

Notes
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ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

 2014/15  2013/14 
Note  R’000  R’000 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING 
ACTIVITIES
Operating Activities

Cash receipts from stakeholders
                   

299,324 
                   

281,112 

Levies, interest and penalties received 2 & 3
                   

299,041 
                   

280,731 

Other cash receipts from stakeholders 5
                          

283 
                          

381 

         Payments to stakeholders
                  

(456,134)
                  

(256,168)

Grants and project payments
                  

(392,782)
                  

(183,736)

Compensation of employees
                    

(44,133)
                    

(32,106)

Payments to suppliers and other
                    

(19,219)
                    

(40,326)

  

Cash Generated from operations 16
                  

(156,809)
                     

24,944 

Interest Income
                     

10,995 
                     

10,305 

Finance Costs
                         

(159)
                           

(91)

Net cash inflow from operating activities
                  

(145,974)
                     

35,158 

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Property, plant and equipment & Intangible assets 8
                      

(4,865)
                      

(1,354)

Disposal of Property, plant and equipment & Intangible assets 7
                         

(540)
                         

(116)

Proceeds from disposal of Property, plant and equipment & 
Intangible assets 5

                          
172 

                             
-   

Net cash out flow from investing activities 
                      

(5,405)
                      

(1,470)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
New finance lease obligations raised during the year 2,011 -

Payments made relating to the finance lease obligations                       
(1,002)

                         
(664)

Net cash in /out flow from finacing activities
                      

1,099  
                         

(664)
2014/15 2013/14

R’000 R’000
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents                   

(150,370)
                     

33,024 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 12
                   

275,139 
                   

242,115 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 12
                   

124,769 
                   

275,139 

RESTATED

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
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Safety and Security Sector Education and Training Authority
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE-COMPARISON TO  THE BUDGET
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

    
 

 

2014/15 2014/15 2014/15 2014/15 2014/15 
Note  R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 (unf R’000 

avourable) 
REVENUE
Skills Development Levy: 
income 2  290,955  280,536 (9,221)  289,757   1,198 

Administration (10.5%) 53,810 98,425 (1,837)  100,262  (46,452) 

Discretionary (49.5%)  186,410  128,853  (13,305)  142,157 44,253 

Employer Grants (20%) 50,734 53,258   5,920 47,338   3,396 

 - 

Skills Development Levy: 
penalties and interest 3   8,086 (5,167)   5,167   2,920 

Other Income 5   283   450   (112)   562   (297) 

      

Investment Income 4   9,710 12,081   2,500   9,581   129 

   

TOTAL REVENUE  309,034  293,067  (12,000)  305,067   3,968 
 

EXPENDITURE   
Employer Grants 6 (37,703) (50 595)  (7 921)  (42 674)  4 971 

Discretionary Grants and 
Project Expenses 6   (367 939)  (166,648)   9,921  (176569)  (191 370) 

Administration expenses 7  (77 998)  (75 824) 25 000   (100,824) 22,826 

  
  

TOTAL EXPENDITURE  (483,475)   (293,067) 27,000   (320,067)   (163,573) 
  

NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 
FOR THE YEAR 1  (174,605)  - 15,000  (15,000)   (159,605) 

ACTUAL
APROVED 
BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS

FINAL    
APROVED   
BUDGET

VARIANCE        
BETWEEN             

ACTUAL  & FINAL 
APPROVED    

BUDGET
( Favourable /       
(unfourable) )
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Safety and Security Sector Education and Training Authority
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ACCOUNTING POLICIES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

The principle accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these Annual Financial Statements are set out 
below and are, in all material aspects, consistent with those of the prior year except as otherwise indicated. The 
cash flow statement has been prepared according to the direct method.

1.BASIS OF PREPARATION

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the effective Standards of Generally 
Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) including any interpretations of such Standards issued by the Account-
ing Standards Board in accordance with section 55 of the Public Finance Management Act ( Act no. 29 of 1999).                                                                                                                                           
                                                                                                                                                                                   

Accounting policies for material transactions, events or conditions not covered by the GRAP reporting framework, 
have been developed in accordance with paragraphs 7, 11 and 12 of GRAP 3 and the hierarchy approved in 
Directive 5 issued by the Accounting Standards Board

Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses have not been offset except where offsetting is required or permitted 
by a Standard of GRAP.

The annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance 
with historical cost convention unless specified otherwise.

They are presented in South African Rand.

Summaries of significant accounting policies are disclosed below.

1.1 Revenue recognition  

3.1 Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Non exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non-exchange 
transaction, an entity either receives value from another entity without directly giving approximately 
equal value in exchange, or gives value to another entity without directly  receiving approximately 
equal value in exchange. 

Measurement

Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of increase in the net assets 
recognised by SASSETA.

When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, SASSETA recognises as asset, it also recognises revenue 
equivalent to the amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition, unless it also required 
to recognise a liability. Where a liability. Where a liability is required to be recognised it will be measured at the 
best estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at the reporting date, and the amount of the increase 
in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. When a liability is subsequently reduced, because the taxable event 
occurs or a condition is satisfied, the amount of the reduction in the liability is recognised.

3.2 Levy income  

The accounting policy for the recognition and measurement of skills development levy income has been amended 
on the basis of a revised interpretation of the Skills Development Act, Act No 97 of 1998 as amended and the Skills 
Development Levies Act, Act No 9 of 2001.

Skills Development Levy (SDL) transfers are recognized when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow 
to the SETA and these benefits can be measured reliably. This occurs when the Department of Higher Education 
and Training (DHET) either makes an allocation or payment, whichever comes first, to the Seta, as required by 
Section 8 of Skills Development Levies Act, 1999 (Act no 9 of 1999). The new policy is effective from 1st April 2007.  
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When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, SASSETA recognises as asset, it also recognises revenue 
equivalent to the amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition, unless it also re-
quired to recognise a liability. Where a liability. Where a liability is required to be recognised it will be measured 
at the best estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at the reporting date, and the amount of the 
increase in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. When a liability is subsequently reduced, because the tax-
able event occurs or a condition is satisfied, the amount of the reduction in the liability is recognised. 

3.2 Levy income  

The accounting policy for the recognition and measurement of skills development levy income has been amended 
on the basis of a revised interpretation of the Skills Development Act, Act No 97 of 1998 as amended and the Skills 
Development Levies Act, Act No 9 of 2001.

Skills Development Levy (SDL) transfers are recognized when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow 
to the SETA and these benefits can be measured reliably. This occurs when the Department of Higher Education 
and Training (DHET) either makes an allocation or payment, whichever comes first, to the Seta, as required by 
Section 8 of Skills Development Levies Act, 1999 (Act no 9 of 1999). The new policy is effective from 1st April 2007.  

In terms of section 3(1) and 3(4) of the Skills Development Levies Act, 1999 (Act No. 9 of 1999) as amended, reg-
istered member companies of the Seta pay a skills development levy of 1% of the total payroll cost to the South 
African Revenue Services (SARS), who collects the levies on behalf of the Department of Higher Education and 
Training (DHET). Companies with an Annual payroll cost less than R500 000 are exempted in accordance with 
Section 4 (b) of the Levies Act as amended, effective 1 August 2005.

80% of skills development levies are paid over to the Seta (net of the 20% contribution to the National Skills Fund). 
The Seta was not in a position to verify that SARS has collected all potential skills levy income. 

Levy income is recognised on the accrual basis. 

Revenue is adjusted for inter-seta transfers due to employers changing Seta’s. Such adjustments are separately 
disclosed as inter-seta transfers. The amount of the inter-seta adjustment is calculated according to the most 
recent Standard Operating Procedure issued by the Department. Skills Development Levy (SDL) transfers are 
recognised on an accrual basis when it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential will flow to the 
SETA and these benefits can be measured reliably. This occurs when the Department makes an allocation to the 
SASSETA, as required by Section 8 of the Skills Development Levies Act, 1999 (Act No. 9 of 1999) as amended.

When a new employer is transferred to the Seta, the levies transferred by the former Seta are recognised as reve-
nue and allocated to the respective category to maintain its original identity.

3.3 Interest and penalties  
Interest and penalties received on the skills development levy are recognised on the accrual basis.

3.4 Funds allocated by the National Skills Fund for Special Projects    

Funds transferred by the National Skills Fund (NSF) are accounted for in the financial statements of the Seta as a 
liability until the related eligible special project expenses are incurred, when the liability is extinguished and reve-
nue recognised.

Property, plant and equipment acquired for NSF Special Projects are capitalised in the financial statements of the 
Seta, as the Seta controls such assets for the duration of the project. Such assets may however only be disposed 
of in terms of agreement and specific written instructions by the NSF.

Safety and Security Sector Education and Training Authority
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ACCOUNTING POLICIES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

3.5 Government grants and other donor income  

Conditional government grants and other conditional donor funding received is recorded as deferred income when 
they become receivable and is then recognised as and when the conditions are met.  Unconditional grants received 
are recognised when the amounts have been received.

3.6 Revenue from exchange transactions
Revenue from exchange transactions is recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits or service 
potential will flow to the Seta and these benefits can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value 
of the consideration received or receivable. 

3.6.1 Investment income   

Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis, taking into account the principal outstanding and the effective 
interest rate over the period to maturity.

4. Grants and project expenditure  
A registered employer may recover a maximum of 20% of its total levy payment as a mandatory employer grant 
(excluding interest and penalties) by complying with the grant criteria in accordance with the Skills Development 
Act, 1998 as amended Seta Grant Regulations regarding monies received and related matters (The Seta Grant 
Regulations).
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3.5 Government grants and other donor income  

Conditional government grants and other conditional donor funding received is recorded as deferred income when 
they become receivable and is then recognised as and when the conditions are met.  Unconditional grants received 
are recognised when the amounts have been received.

3.6 Revenue from exchange transactions
Revenue from exchange transactions is recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits or service 
potential will flow to the Seta and these benefits can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value 
of the consideration received or receivable. 

3.6.1 Investment income   

Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis, taking into account the principal outstanding and the effective 
interest rate over the period to maturity.

4. Grants and project expenditure  
A registered employer may recover a maximum of 20% of its total levy payment as a mandatory employer grant 
(excluding interest and penalties) by complying with the grant criteria in accordance with the Skills Development 
Act, 1998 as amended Seta Grant Regulations regarding monies received and related matters (The Seta Grant 
Regulations).

Mandatory grants  
The grant expenditure is recognised when the employer has submitted an application for a grant in the prescribed 
form within the legislated cut off period and the application has been approved. Grants are equivalent to 20% of the 
total levies contributed by employers to the Seta during the corresponding financial period.  

Discretionary project expenditure
A Seta may out of surplus monies and in accordance with criteria as defined in the Seta Grant Regulations allocate 
funds to employers and other associations or organisations. The criteria for allocating funds are approved by the 
Seta Board. Where necessary it can be required of interested employers, associations or organisations to complete 
and submit a funding application for consideration and approval by the Seta.

A Seta allocates discretionary grants to employers who have submitted an application for a discretionary grant in 
the prescribed form within the agreed upon cut-off period. Discretionary grant expenditure is recognised as expens-
es in the period in which they are incurred, in which the conditions are met.

Project expenditure comprise: 

-  costs that relate directly to the specific contract; 

-  costs that are attributable to contract activity in general and can be allocated to the project; and

-  such other costs as are specifically chargeable to the Seta under the terms of the contract.

Such costs are allocated using methods that are systematic and rational and are applied consistently to all costs 
having similar characteristics. 

Retrospective adjustments by SARS

The Seta refunds amounts to employers in the form of grants, based on information from SARS.  Where SARS 
retrospectively amends the information on levies collected, it may result in grants that have been paid to certain 
employers that are in excess of the amount the Seta is permitted to have granted to employers. A receivable relat-
ing to the overpayment to the employer in earlier periods is raised as the amount of such grant overpayment, net 
of bad debts and provision for irrecoverable amounts.

Unconditional grants disbursed towards National Skills Fund (NSF) For Further Education and Training 
(FET) college infrastructure development

In terms of Skills Development Circular No. 08/2013 Setas are required to contribute funds towards the NSF for 
FET college infrastructure development.  Funding agreements between the NSF and each individual SETA outline 
the details of the Seta’s contribution as per the Skills Development Circular.  There are no conditions or restric-
tions for the Seta and the funding is not refundable.

The FET college infrastructure development payment is treated as a non exchange transaction and is recognised 
as an expense in the period that the payment is incurred or when the funding becomes payable by the Seta as 
outlined in the funding agreement, whichever occurs first.

A contractual obligation is triggered on the date that the funding agreement is signed and a liability is recognized 
to the extent of the amount outstanding.
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The Seta refunds amounts to employers in the form of grants, based on information from SARS.  Where SARS 
retrospectively amends the information on levies collected, it may result in grants that have been paid to certain 
employers that are in excess of the amount the Seta is permitted to have granted to employers. A receivable relat-
ing to the overpayment to the employer in earlier periods is raised as the amount of such grant overpayment, net 
of bad debts and provision for irrecoverable amounts.

Unconditional grants disbursed towards National Skills Fund (NSF) For Further Education and Training 
(FET) college infrastructure development

In terms of Skills Development Circular No. 08/2013 Setas are required to contribute funds towards the NSF for 
FET college infrastructure development.  Funding agreements between the NSF and each individual SETA outline 
the details of the Seta’s contribution as per the Skills Development Circular.  There are no conditions or restric-
tions for the Seta and the funding is not refundable.

The FET college infrastructure development payment is treated as a non exchange transaction and is recognised 
as an expense in the period that the payment is incurred or when the funding becomes payable by the Seta as 
outlined in the funding agreement, whichever occurs first.

A contractual obligation is triggered on the date that the funding agreement is signed and a liability is recognized 
to the extent of the amount outstanding.

5. Irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Irregular expenditure means expenditure incurred in contravention of, or not in accordance with, a requirement of 
any applicable legislation, including:

- The PFMA, 

- The Skills Development Act (the Act), 1998 (Act No.97 of 1998) as amended

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure means expenditure that was made in vain and would have been avoided had 
reasonable care been exercised.

All irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised against the respective class of expense in the 
period in which they are incurred.

6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and 
adjusted for any impairments. Depreciation is charged so as to write off the 

costs of the assets over their estimated useful lives, using the straight line method.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at each year 
end, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Property, plant and equipment (owned and leased) are stated at cost less any subsequent accumulated depreci-
ation and adjusted for any impairments. Depreciation is calculated on the straight line-method to write off the cost 
of each asset to estimated residual value over its estimated useful life. 

Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down 
immediately to its recoverable amount (i.e. impairment losses are recognised.) Gains  and losses on disposal 
of Property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying 
amount and are taken into account in determining operating surplus

Safety and Security Sector Education and Training Authority
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ACCOUNTING POLICIES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sale 
proceeds and the carrying amount and are taken 
into account in determining operating profit

In the application of the Seta’s accounting policies management is required to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. 
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are consid-
ered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the peri-
od of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty 
at year end, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities within the next financial year.

Useful lives of Property, plant and equipment

The Seta reviews the estimated useful lives of Property, plant and equipment at the end of each annual reporting 
period for the carrying values of Property, plant and equipment .

Management determined, consistent with the prior year, that the useful life of assets should not be limited by the 
Seta’s establishment. Management’s determination of useful life also impacts the determination of the residual 
value of assets.
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he gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sale 
proceeds and the carrying amount and are taken 
into account in determining operating profit

n the application of the Seta’s accounting policies management is required to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. 
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are consid-
ered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

he estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the peri-
od of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty 
at year end, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities within the next financial year.

Useful lives of Property, plant and equipment

The Seta reviews the estimated useful lives of Property, plant and equipment at the end of each annual reporting 
period for the carrying values of Property, plant and equipment .

Management determined, consistent with the prior year, that the useful life of assets should not be limited by the 
Seta’s establishment. Management’s determination of useful life also impacts the determination of the residual 
value of assets.

The following useful lives are used in the calculation of depreciation

Computer equipment 3 to 10 years

Computer Server 3 to 10 years

Furniture and Fittings 5 to 16 years

Office equipment 5 to 16 years

Vehicles 5 to 10 years

The Seta has reviewed the residual values used for the purposes of depreciation calculations. 
The review did not highlight any requirement for an adjustment to the residual values used in the 
current or prior periods. Residual values are reviewed annually.

6.1. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Intangible assets are stated at cost less any subsequent accumulated amortisation and adjusted for any impair-
ments.  Amortisation is charged so as to write off the cost of assets over their estimated useful lives, using the 
straight line method.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and amortisation method are reviewed at each year end, with the 
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is writ-
ten down immediately to its recoverable amount (i.e. impairment losses are recognised.)

The gain or loss on disposal of intangible assets is determined as the difference between the sale 
proceeds and the carrying amount and are taken into account in determining operating surplus.

Useful lives of Intangible assets

The Seta reviews the estimated useful lives of Intangible assets at the end of each annual reporting 
period for the carrying values of Intangible assets . 

The following useful life is used in the calculation of amortisation

Computer software 2 to 10 years

The Seta has reviewed the residual values used for the purposes of depreciation / amortisation 
calculations in light of the amended definition of residual value. The review did not highlight any 
requirement for an adjustment to the residual values used in the current or prior periods. Residual 
values are reviewed annually.

7. LEASING
Finance leases consistent with the definition set out in the Treasury Regulations refer to a contract that transfers 
the risks, rewards, rights and obligations incidental to ownership to the lessee and is recorded as a purchase of 
equipment by means of long-term borrowing. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Payments made under operating leases (leases other than finance leases) are charged to the Statement of 
Financial Performance on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. When an operating lease is termi-
nated before the lease period has expired, any payment required to be made to the lessor by way of penalty is 
recognised as an expense in the period in which termination takes place.



SASSETA  ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015 72

Useful lives of Intangible assets

The Seta reviews the estimated useful lives of Intangible assets at the end of each annual reporting 
period for the carrying values of Intangible assets . 

The following useful life is used in the calculation of amortisation

Computer software 2 to 10 years

The Seta has reviewed the residual values used for the purposes of depreciation / amortisation 
calculations in light of the amended definition of residual value. The review did not highlight any 
requirement for an adjustment to the residual values used in the current or prior periods. Residual 
values are reviewed annually.

7. LEASING
Finance leases consistent with the definition set out in the Treasury Regulations refer to a contract that transfers 
the risks, rewards, rights and obligations incidental to ownership to the lessee and is recorded as a purchase of 
equipment by means of long-term borrowing. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Payments made under operating leases (leases other than finance leases) are charged to the Statement of 
Financial Performance on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. When an operating lease is termi-
nated before the lease period has expired, any payment required to be made to the lessor by way of penalty is 
recognised as an expense in the period in which termination takes place.

8. PROVISIONS
Provisions are recognised when the Seta has a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable 
that this will result in an outflow of economic benefits that can be estimated reliably. Long-term provisions are 
discounted to net present value. 

The cost of employee benefits is recognised during the period in which the employee renders the related service. 
Employee entitlements are recognised when they accrue to employees.  A provision is made for the estimated 
liability as a result of services rendered by employees up to the Statement of Financial Position date. Provisions 
included in the Statement of Financial Position are provisions for leave (based on the current salary rates) and 
termination benefits.

9. GRANTS AND PROJECTS

Mandatory and discretionary Grant Payments  

A liability is recognised for grant payments once the specific criteria set out in the Seta Grant Regulation has 
been complied with by member companies and it is probable that the Seta will approve the payment. The liability 
is measured at the net present value of the expected future cash outflow as determined in accordance with the 
Act. This measurement involves an estimate, based on the amount of levies received.

Discretionary Projects  

No provision is made for projects approved at year-end, unless the service in terms of the contract has been 
delivered. Where a project has been approved, but has not been accrued for or provided for, it is disclosed as 
approved and allocated for future projects in the notes to Annual Financial Statements.  

Commitments are disclosed where the Seta has, in the normal course of its operations, entered into a contractual 
agreement with entities related to project expenses which are yet due for payment.

Safety and Security Sector Education and Training Authority
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ACCOUNTING POLICIES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the Seta’s Statement of Financial Position when the 
Seta becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Investments are recognised and derecognised on a trade date where the purchase or sale of an investment is 
under a contract whose terms require delivery of the investment within the timeframe established by the market 
concerned, and are initially measured at fair value or net of transaction cost except for those financial assets 
classified as at fair value through profit or loss, which are initially measured at fair value.

Financial assets can be classified into the following specified categories: financial assets as at fair value through 
profit or loss (FVTPL), held to maturity investments, available for sale (AFS) financial assets and loans and re-
ceivables. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the 
time of initial recognition.  All financial assets of the Seta were categorised as loans and receivables.

Financial Assets

Recognition  

10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Trade receivables, loans, and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted 
in an active market are classified as ‘loans and receivables’. Loans and receivables are measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest method less any impairment. Interest income is recognised by applying the 
effective interest rate, except for short term receivables where the recognition of interest will be immaterial.

Loans and receivables
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Recognition  

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the Seta’s Statement of Financial Posi-
tion when the Seta becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 
    

Financial Assets  

Investments are recognised and derecognised on a trade date where the purchase or sale of an investment is 
under a contract whose terms require delivery of the investment within the timeframe established by the market 
concerned, and are initially measured at fair value or net of transaction cost except for those financial assets 
classified as at fair value through profit or loss, which are initially measured at fair value.

Financial assets can be classified into the following specified categories: financial assets as at fair value through 
profit or loss (FVTPL), held to maturity investments, available for sale (AFS) financial assets and loans and re-
ceivables. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the 
time of initial recognition.  All financial assets of the Seta were categorised as loans and receivables. 

Loans and receivables 

Trade receivables, loans, and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in 
an active market are classified as ‘loans and receivables’. Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest method less any impairment. Interest income is recognised by applying the effective 
interest rate, except for short term receivables where the recognition of interest will be immaterial.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating 
interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated 
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at each balance sheet date. Financial assets are 
impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial 
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been impacted. For 
financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment is the difference between the assets 
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest 
rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets 
with the exception of trade receivables where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance 
account. When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent 
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying 
amount of the allowance account are recognised in the surplus or deficit.

Financial Liabilities  

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets 
with the exception of trade receivables where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance 
account. When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent 
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying 
amount of the allowance account are recognised in the surplus or deficit.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating 
interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated 
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at each balance sheet date. Financial assets are 
impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial 
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been impacted. For 
financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment is the difference between the assets 
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest 
rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets 
with the exception of trade receivables where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance 
account. When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent 
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying 
amount of the allowance account are recognised in the surplus or deficit.

Effective interest method

Financial Liabilities 

Impairment of financial assets

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss 
(FVTPL) or other financial liabilities. 

Account and other payables do not bear interest and are stated at their nominal value.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL where the financial liability is either held for trading or 
it is designated as at FVTPL.

All financial liabilities of the Seta were classified as other financial liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised costs using the effective interest 
method, with interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability 
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate 
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial 
liability, or where appropriate a shorter period.
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Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) or 
other financial liabilities. 

Account and other payables do not bear interest and are stated at their nominal value.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL where the financial liability is either held for trading or it is designat-
ed as at FVTPL.

All financial liabilities of the Seta were classified as other financial liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised costs using the effective interest 
method, with interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability 
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate 
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial 
liability, or where appropriate a shorter period.

11. RESERVES

Net Assets are classified based on the restrictions placed on the distribution of monies received in accordance 
with the Regulations issued in terms of the Skills Development Act , 1998 (Act 97 of 1998) as follows:

-  Administration reserve 

-  Employer grant reserve 

-  Discretionary reserve

Employer levy payments are set aside in terms of the Skills Development  Act and the regulations issued in terms 
of the Act, for the purpose of:

 
2014/15  2013/14 

 %  % 

Administration costs of the Seta 10.5 10.5

Employer grant fund levy 20 20

Discretionary grants and projects 49.5  49.5

Received by the Seta 80 80

Contribution to the National Skills Fund 20 20

100  100

In addition, contributions received from public service employers in the national or provincial spheres of govern-
ment are used to fund the Seta’s administration and discretionary grants expenditure. One-third of the amount 
received is utilised for admistration and the two-thirds for discretionary grants expenditure.  

Interest and penalties received from SARS as well as interest received on investments is utilised for discretionary 
grant projects.

Safety and Security Sector Education and Training Authority
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ACCOUNTING POLICIES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

Surplus funds in the administration and unallocated funds in the employer grant reserves are 
moved to the discretionary fund reserve. Provision is made in mandatory grant reserve for newly 
registered companies, participating after the legislative cut off date.

12. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation in the current 
year.

13.  TAXATION

No provision has been made for taxation, as the Seta is exempt from income tax in terms of Section 10 of the 
Income Tax Act , 1962 (Act 58 of 1962).

14.  VALUE ADDED TAXATION

The Revenue Laws Amendment Act 2003 (Act no 45 of 2003) commenced on 22 December 2003. Previously the 
definition of enterprise placed Setas listed in schedule 3A within the scope of VAT. The amendment Act however, 
has amended this definition of enterprise and effectively places the public entity outside the scope of VAT effec-
tive 1 April 2005.

The amount reflected as VAT due to or from the South African Revenue Services is in accordance with the 
dispensation prescribed by the South African Revenue Service. In accordance with this, the Seta is therefore 
deregistered for VAT with effect 1 April 2005.

Safety and Security Sector Education and Training Authority
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In addition, contributions received from public service employers in the national or provincial spheres of govern-
ment are used to fund the Seta’s administration and discretionary grants expenditure. One-third of the amount 
received is utilised for admistration and the two-thirds for discretionary grants expenditure.  

Interest and penalties received from SARS as well as interest received on investments is utilised for discretionary 
grant projects.
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15. CONSUMABLE INVENTORY

Consumables are recognised as an asset on the date of acquisition and it is measured at the cost of 
acquisition. It is subsequently recognised in surplus or deficit as it is consumed. Subsequent to initial 
recognition inventory is measured at lower of cost and current replacement cost.
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015
1.  ALLOCATION OF NET SURPLUS FOR THE CURRENT YEAR TO RESERVES

1
 Employer 

Grants 
Reserve 

 Discretion-
ary Reserve 

Total per 
Statement 

of Financial 
Performance 

2013/2014 
R’000

 Total per 
Statement 

of Financial 
Performance 

2014/2015 
R’000 

 Admin-
istration 
Reserve 

R’000 

 

 Mandato-
ry Skills 

Grant 
R’000 

 Discretion-
ary Grants 

R’000 

Total Revenue                       
299 592 

                      
309,034

                     
54,093                       

50,734 
                   

204,207

Skills Development Levy Income:
      

Admin Levy Income (10.5%)
                  

96,231 
                        

53,810 
                     

53,810  
                             

-   
                             

-   

Grants / Levy Income (69.5%)
                      

187,852 
                      

237,144 
                             

-    
                     

50,734 
                   

186,409 

Skills Development Levy        
Penalties and Interest

                          
4,783 

                          
8,086 

                             
-    

                             
-   

                       
8,086 

Investment Income
                        

10,305 
                          

9,710 
                             

-    
                             

-   
                       

9,710 

Other income
                             

421 
                             

283
                          

283  
                             

-    

Total Expenses                       
248 245 

                      
483,640

                     
77,998

                     
37,703

                   
367,939

      

Administration expenses
                        

78,106 
                        

77,998 
                     

77,998  
                             

-   
                             

-   

Employer grants and project 
expenses

                      
170,139 

                      
405,642 

                             
-    

                     
37,703

                   
367,939 

      

Net (deficit)/surplus per State-
ment of Financial Performance 
allocated

                        
51 347 

                    
(174,606)

                    
(23,904)                       

13,031                    
(163,733)  

                                
-   

Safety and Security Sector Education and Training Authority

1.  ALLOCATION OF NET SURPLUS FOR THE CURRENT YEAR TO RESERVES
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2. SKILLS DEVELOPMENT LEVY TRANSFER FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS
 2014/15  2013/14 
 R’000  R’000 

 The total levy transfer per the Statement of Financial Performance is as follows:

 Levy Income: Administration
                     

53,810 
                     

96,231 

 Levies received
           
53,781 

           
95,923 

 Levies received from DHET
                     

28,079 
                     

26,495 

 Government levies received
                     

25,690 
                     

69,418 

 Inter-seta transfers in
                            

12 
                            

10 

 Levies accrued
                 

30 
                

308 

 Levy Income: Employer grants
                     

50,734 
                     

69,674 

 Levies received
           
50,678 

            
68,087 

 Levies received from DHET
                     

50,656  
                     

68,067 

 Levies accrued

22            
57 

20        
1,587 

 Levy Income: Discretionary grants
                   

186,410 
                   

118,178 

 Levies received
         

186,270 
          

117,606 

 Levies received from DHET
                   

134,835 
                   

117,556 

 Government levies received
                     

51,381 
                             

-   

 Inter-seta transfers in
                            

55 
                            

50 

 Levies accrued
                

140 
                 

572 
         

290,954 
          

284,083 

3. Skills Development Levy: Penalties and Interest
                       

8,086 
                       

4,783 

RESTATED

2. SKILLS DEVELOPMENT LEVY TRANSFER FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

The total levy transfer per the Statement of Financial 

Performance is as follows:

2.  SKILLS DEVELOPMENT LEVY TRANSFER FROM NON-EXCHANGE    
T   TRANSACTIONS

 Inter-seta transfers in
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4. INVESTMENT INCOME

Interest received from the banks
                       

9,710 
                     

10,305 

                       
9,710 

                     
10,305 

5. OTHER INCOME
Other income comprises:

Revenue from supporting services rendered by other
                          

111 
                          

369 

Other :
                              

172 
                            

52 

Refunds from Bursaries
                             

-   
                            

12 

Profit on disposal of assets
                             

165   - 

Proceeds from Insurance
                              

7 
                            

40 

                          
283 

                          
421 

6. EMPLOYER GRANT AND PROJECT EXPENSES
 2014/15  2013/14 
 R’000  R’000 

   Mandatory grants
                     

37,703 
                     

50,549 

Disbursed
           
37,677  

           
76,808 

      Movement in provisions and accruals 26  
         

(26,259)

   Discretionary grants 6.1
                   
367,939 

                   
119,590 

      Disbursed
         

355,105  
         

106,928 

      Movement in provisions and accruals 
          
12,834  

            
12,662 

         
405,642 

          
170,139 

Safety and Security Sector Education and Training Authority
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ACCOUNTING POLICIES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

6.1 Discretionary grants

Project expenditure
                   
349,933 

                   
118,228 

Project administration costs
                     

18,006 
                       

1,362 

                   
367,939

   

119,590

 2014/15  2013/14 
 R’000  R’000 

RESTATED
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7. ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES
Note

   Advertising, marketing and promotions, communication
                       

2,799 
                       

4,839 

   Bad Debts
                             

-   
                          

981 

   Depreciation / Amortisation
                       

2,926 
                       

1,979 

   External auditor’s remuneration
                       

2,663 
                       

2,531 

   Loss on disposal of Property, plant and equipment
                          

540 
                            

57 

   Operating lease rentals (minimum lease payments)
                       

3,907 
                       

3,525 

   Cost of employment 7.1
                     

31,938 
                     

32,045 

   Professional Fees
                       

8,467 
                       

6,431 

   Entertainment expenses
                             

-   
                            

56 

   Legal fees
                       

2,982 
                       

2,806 

   Maintenance, repairs and running costs
                       

1,405 
                       

1,318 

   Provision for doubtful debts
                          

808 
                             

-   

   Remuneration to members of the accounting authority
                       

1,785 
                       

2,371 

   Remuneration to members of the audit committee
                          

203 
                          

450 

   Remuneration to members of other committees
                          

334 
                          

878 

   Staff training and development
                          

662 
                          

329 

   Travel and subsistence
                       

2,627 
                       

1,887 

RESTATED
2013/14

R’000

2014/15
R’000
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       Other
                     

13,950
                     

15,624 

Other Expenses
                       

6,747 
                       

4,128 

Insurance
                          

151 
                          

140 

Meetings and workshops
                          

479 
                       

3,544 

Telephone costs
                          

975 
                          

935 

Interest paid
                          

159 
                            

91 

Recruitment costs
                          

913 
                       

1,522 

Stationery and Printing
                          

772 
                          

804 

Subscription and publications
                            

78 
                          

115 

Secretarial Fees
                          

567 
                       

2,105 

Firearm expenses
                          

743 
                          

289 

Accommodation and meals
                       

1,622 
                       

1,723 

Administration expenses
                             

-   
                             

-   

Internal Audit Fees
                          

744 
                          

228 

                     
77,996 

                     
78,107 

7.1  Cost of employment

          Salaries and wages
                     

27,309 
                     

27,667  

   Basic salaries
                     

26,175 
                     

27,029  

   Performance bonus
                          

465 
                             

-    

   Leave
                          

406 
                          

448 

  Overtime
                          

263 
                          

190 

Safety and Security Sector Education and Training Authority
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ACCOUNTING POLICIES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 RESTATED

2013/14
R’000

2014/15
R’000
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Social Contributions
                       

4,629 
                       

4,378 

  Medical aid Contributions
                       

1,390 
                       

1,469 

  Provident Fund contributions
                       

3,073 
                       

2,755 

  UIF
                          

166 
                          

154 

                     
31,938 

                     
32,045 

Average number of employees
                          

103 
                            

84

RESTATED
2013/14

R’000
2014/15

R’000
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8. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

 Cost 
 Accumulated              

depreciation  Closing carrying amount  
Year ended 31 March 
2015  R’000  R’000  R’000 

Computer Server                           2,345                         (1,978)                           367 

Computer equipment                           4,602                         (3,092)                        1,510 

Office furniture and fittings                           3,808                         (2,172)                        1,636 

Office equipment                           2,011                            (976)                        1,035 

Motor vehicles                              497                              (60)                           437 

                        13,263                         (8,278)                        4,985 
Made up as follows:

- Owned assets                         11,252                         (7,302)                        3,950 

- Lease assets                           2,011                            (976)                        1,035 

Year ended 31 March 
2014  Cost 

 Accumulated              
depreciation  Closing carrying amount  

 R’000  R’000  R’000 
Computer Server                           2,345                         (1,719)                           627 

Computer equipment                           5,886                         (3,907)                        1,978 

                          3,061                         (2,259)                           802 

Office equipment                           3,822                         (3,769)                             53 

Motor vehicles                              487                            (431)                             56 

                        15,601                       (12,085)                                                      
Made up as follows:

- Owned assets                         11,785                         (8,316)                        3,463 

- Lease assets                           3,816                         (3,769)                             53 

 3,516

Balance at end of year

Balance at end of year

Safety and Security Sector Education and Training Authority
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ACCOUNTING POLICIES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015
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      Movement Summary 2015

Carrying amount    
2014  Additions  Disposals  

 Carrying 
amount            

2015 
R’000  R’000  R’000   R’000 

Computer Server  627   -    -  -     368 

Computer equipment   1 978   1 016  (2 300)       1,510 

Office furniture and 
fittings  802   1 341    ( 594)      1,636 

Office equipment    53   2 011  (3 816)       1,034 

Motor vehicles    56  497    ( 487)     438 

Balance at end of year   3,516   4,865   (7,197)       4,986 

Movement Summary 2014

Carrying amount   
2013  Additions  Disposals  

 Carrying 
amount2014 

R’000 R’000  R’000   R’000 
Computer Server  450  324  -    -     627 

Computer equipment   2 191  774  (265)      1,978 

Office furniture and 
fittings  909  260  (108)     802 

Office equipment  548 -    -    -   53 

Motor vehicles    84 -    -    -   56 

Balance at end of year   4 182   1,359  (373)       3,516 

Safety and Security Sector Education and Training Authority
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ACCOUNTING POLICIES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

Movement Summary 2014/15

 Carrying 
amount    

2014 
 Additions 

 
Cost of 
Assets 
Disposed 

 Depreciation 
 Accumulated 
Depreciation 
on Disposal 

 Carrying 
Amount            

2015 

 R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 

Computer Server   627  -  -  ( 259)  -   368 

Computer equipment  1 978  1 016  (2 300)  (1 052)  1 867  1 510 
Office furniture and 
fittings   802  1 341  ( 594)  ( 447)   534  1 636 

Office equipment   53  2 011  (3 816)  (1 030)  3 816  1 034 

Motor vehicles   56   497  ( 487)  ( 68)   439   438 

Balance at end of year  3 516  4 865  (7 197)  (2 856)  6 657  4 986 

Movement Summary 2013/14

 Carrying 
amount   

2013 
 Additions 

Cost of 
Assets 
Disposed 

 Deprecia-
tion 

 Accumulat-
ed Depre-
ciation on 

Disposal 

 Carrying 
Amount            

2014 

 R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 
Computer Server   450   324  -  ( 147)  -   627 
Computer equipment  2 191   774  ( 265)  ( 873)   151  1 978 
Office furniture and 
fittings   909   260  ( 108)  ( 366)   106   802 

Office equipment   548  -  -  ( 495)  -   53 

Motor vehicles   84  -  -  ( 28)  -   56 

Balance at end of year  4 182  1 359  ( 373)  (1 909)   257  3 516 
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9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Year ended 31 March 
2015

 
 

 

Year ended 31 March 
2015  R’000  R’000  

Computer Software                                                             
938

                          
813 126

Balance at end of year                                                             
938

                           
813                              126

Made up as follows:

- Owned assets
                             

938                                               813           126

Year ended 31 March 
2015

 Cost  Accumulated 
amortisation  

  

 R’000  R’000  R’000 

Computer Software                                     2,553               
                             

(2,358) 195

Balance at end of year
                          

2,553 
                        

2,553
                             

(2,358)                           195

Made up as follows:

- Owned assets                                                                                 
(2,358) 195 195

Movement Summary 
2015

Carrying 
amount    

2014

 Additions  Disposals  Depreciation 
charge 

 Accumu-
lated Amor-

tisation of 
Disposed 

Assets 

 Car-
rying 

R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000  

Computer Software
                             

195 
                                  

- 
                      

(1,615)
                           

(70)
                       

1,615                           

Balance at end of year
                             

195 
                                

-   
                      

(1,615)
                           

(70)
                       

1,615                           

Movement Summary 
2014

Carrying 
amount   

2013  Additions  Disposals 

 Depre-
ciation 
charge  R’000  

R’000   R’000   R’000  

Computer Software
                      

265 
                          

-                           -                          
(70)

                          
-                         

Balance at end of year
                      

265 
                          

-                           -                           
(70)

                           
-                         

 R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 

Computer Software                                                                                                                  
(70)

                       
1,615 

                          
126 

Balance at end of year                                                                                                                  
(70)

                       
1,615 

                          
126 

Movement 
Summary 
2014

  

 Deprecia-
tion charge 

             
R’000 

 Carrying 
amount            

2014 
R’000     R’000  R’000 

Computer Software                                                                           -                          
(70)

                     
-   

                      
195 

Balance at 
end of year

                      
265                                                      -                           

(70)
                           

-   
                      

195 

Carrying 
amount    

2014

 Additions  Disposals  Depreciation 
charge 

 Accumulat-
ed Amor-
tisation of 
Disposed 

Assets 

 Carrying 
amount            

2015 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

R’000 R’000

(1,615)-195

265 

265 

195 -

-

-

(1,615)

DisposalsAdditionsCarrying 
amount   

2013

Balance at end of year

Cost

 Accumulated 

amortisation  Closing carrying amount   

 R’000

(2,358)2,553

938

 R’000

Cost

 Accumulated 

amortisation  Closing carrying amount   

 R’000 R’000 R’000

Safety and Security Sector Education and Training Authority
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ACCOUNTING POLICIES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

Cost Accu-
mulated 

Amortisa-
tion

Closing 
carrying 
amount 

Year ended 31 March 
2015

R’000 R’000 R’000

Computer Software  938  813  126 
Balance at end of year  938  813  126 
Made up as follows:
- Owned assets  938  813  126 
- Lease assets  -  -  - 

Year ended 31 March 
2014

Cost Accu-
mulated 

Amortisa-
tion

Closing 
carrying 
amount 

 R’000  R’000  R’000 
Computer Software  2,553  (2 358)  195 
Balance at end of year  2,553  (2 358)  195 
Made up as follows:
- Owned assets  2,553  (2,358)  195 
- Lease assets  -  -  - 

Movement Summary 2015
Carrying 
Amount    

2014 

 Additions Cost of 
Assets 

Disposed 

 Amortisa-
tion 

 Accumulat-
ed Amor-

tisation of 
Disposed 

Assets 

Carrying 
Amount            

2015 

 R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 
Computer Software  195  -  (1 615)  ( 70)  1,615  126 
Balance at end of year  195  -  (1 615)  ( 70)  1,615  126 

Movement Summary 2014
Carrying 
Amount   

2013 

 Additions Cost of 
Assets 

Disposed 

 Amortisa-
tion 

 Accumulat-
ed Amor-

tisation of 
Disposed 

Assets 

Carrying 
Amount            

2014 

 R’000 R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 
Computer Software  265  -  -  ( 70)  -  195 
Balance at end of year  265  -  -  ( 70)  -  195 

Safety and Security Sector Education and Training Authority
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ACCOUNTING POLICIES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015
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10. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES  2014/15  2013/14 
 R’000  R’000 

Non-exchange Transactions

Employer receivables 10.1                        
7,818 

                       
4,722 

Skills Development Levy debtors
                            

28 
                            

28 

Admin Levy Debtors
                              

4 
                              

4 

Employer Grant levy debtors
                            

20 
                            

20 

Discretionary Grant debtors
                              

4 
                              

4 

Project debtors
                             

7,846   
                             

4,750 

Provision for Doubtful Debts
                           

(43) 
                             

-   

                       
7,804 

                       
4,750 

The provision for doubtful debts relates to the employers with a SARS status indicating that the employers are no 
longer active regarding the skills development levy contributions. These provision amounts to R15,000. Included also 
is the provision for employer receivables amount of R28,000.

Exchange Transactions

Rental Deposit
                       

1,690 
                       

1,593 

Interest receivable
                            

88 
                       

1,373 

Staff debtors
                            

23 
                              

8 

Prepayments
                            

55 
                          

278 

Sundry Receivables
                          

346 
                             

-   

                       
2,202 

                       
3,252 

Provision for Doubtful Debts
                         

(762) 
                             

-   

                       
1,441 

                       
3,252 

The provision for doubtful debts relates to the reimburse refurbishments carried out on the leased buildings. 
The deadline for claiming this amount was in the 2012/13 financial year. 

RESTATED

Cost Accu-
mulated 

Amortisa-
tion

Closing 
carrying 
amount 

Year ended 31 March 
2015

R’000 R’000 R’000

Computer Software  938  813  126 
Balance at end of year  938  813  126 
Made up as follows:
- Owned assets  938  813  126 
- Lease assets  -  -  - 

Year ended 31 March 
2014

Cost Accu-
mulated 

Amortisa-
tion

Closing 
carrying 
amount 

 R’000  R’000  R’000 
Computer Software  2,553  (2 358)  195 
Balance at end of year  2,553  (2 358)  195 
Made up as follows:
- Owned assets  2,553  (2,358)  195 
- Lease assets  -  -  - 

Movement Summary 2015
Carrying 
Amount    

2014 

 Additions Cost of 
Assets 

Disposed 

 Amortisa-
tion 

 Accumulat-
ed Amor-

tisation of 
Disposed 

Assets 

Carrying 
Amount            

2015 

 R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 
Computer Software  195  -  (1 615)  ( 70)  1,615  126 
Balance at end of year  195  -  (1 615)  ( 70)  1,615  126 

Movement Summary 2014
Carrying 
Amount   

2013 

 Additions Cost of 
Assets 

Disposed 

 Amortisa-
tion 

 Accumulat-
ed Amor-

tisation of 
Disposed 

Assets 

Carrying 
Amount            

2014 

 R’000 R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 
Computer Software  265  -  -  ( 70)  -  195 
Balance at end of year  265  -  -  ( 70)  -  195 
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10.1 Employer Receivables
 2014/15  2013/14 
 R’000  R’000 

Overpayment to employers
                   

7 818 
                    

4 722 

Provision for grant payable
                            

- 
                           

- 

                    
7,818 

                    
4,722 

During the year R7,8 million was recognised relating to the over payment to the employer in the earlier periods, and is 
based on the amount of such grant over payments

11.  INVENTORY

Balance at the beginning of the year
                       

842 
                       

341 

Amount utilised
                      

(964) 
                      

(804)

Purchases
                       

539 
                    

1,305 

balance at the end of the year
                       

417                         
842 

12.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash at bank and in hand
                   

28,555
                   
160,639 

   Cash at bank
                   

28,554
                   
160,640

   Cash in hand
                             

1   
                             

1 

Short term investments/instruments
                             

96,214   
                             
114,515 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
                   

124,769 
                   
275,139 

As required in Treasury Regulation 31.2, National Treasury approved the banks where the bank accounts are held.  
The weighted average interest rate on short term bank deposits was 6% (2014: 6%).

RESTATED

Safety and Security Sector Education and Training Authority
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ACCOUNTING POLICIES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015
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13   Finance Lease Obligation
                                                                

Reconciliation between the total of the minimum lease payments
and the present value

Up to 1 year
Future minimum lease payments

Finance costs                                                     
(6) 

                       
1,161 

                            
79 

Finance Leases

The finance leases relate to the photocopying machines and the video conferencing system 
which commenced on the 01 April 2014 and 25 June 2014 respectively. Both leases expire on the 
31March 2016.

14 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 

                                                             
- 

   From Non-Exchange transactions

   Skills development grants payable -  mandatory                                                 3,422 3,396

   Employer Payable                                                
1,368   7,551 1,368

                                             
4,764 10,973 4,764

   From Exchange transactions

Skills development grants payable -  discretionary                                            27,958 15,124

Service provider fees outstanding                                                
3,863   9,651    3,863

Income received in advance                                                      
881      894       881

Sundry Payables                                                
2,237   2,642    2,237

Straight lining - operating lease                                                      
684      823       684

Other - Leave accrual                                                
1,166   1,372    1,166

Other - 13th cheque accumulation                                                      
387      447       387

                     
41,145 

                     
22,105 41,145  22,105

                             
-   

The finance leases relate to the photocopying machines and the video conferencing system which 
commenced on the 01 April 2014 and 25 June 2014 respectively. Both leases expire on the 31st 
March 2016.

Finance Leases

RESTATED
 2014/15  2013/14 

 R’000  R’000 

861,228

(67) (6) 

791,161
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15  Provisions

Exempt 
Em-

ployers

Other Provi-
sions Total

Open carrying amount
                    

915 
                           

-                         915 

Amounts utilised
                 

( 227)                      -                       ( 227) 

Change in estimate
                         

-   
                       

350                        350 

Closing carrying 
amount 688 350 1,038

Other provisions relates to legal fees to be reimbursed to a staff member due to the disciplinary case that 

was dismissed with costs.

Safety and Security Sector Education and Training Authority
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ACCOUNTING POLICIES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

Exempt Employers Other Provisions
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16 RECONCILIATION OF NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES TO NET DEFICIT
 2014/15  2013/14 

 R’000  R’000 
    Net Surplus/ (deficit) as per Statement of               
Fi Financial Performance

                  
(174,606)                      51,347 

    Adjusted for non-cash items:

Depreciation and Amortisation
                    

2,926                     1,979 

Loss / (Profit) on disposal of Property, plant 
and equipment

                       
540                          57 

Bad debts written off
                           

-                          981 

Prior year error adjustments
                       

159                   (1,040) 

    Allowance for doubtful debts
                      

808                            -   

Proceeds from disposal of assets
                      

(165)                            -   

Proceeds from insurance
                         

(7 )                         (40) 

    Acquisition of Leased Assets
                             

-   

    Adjusted for items separately disclosed

Investment Income
                  

(9,710)                 (10,305)

Finance Charges
                       

159                          91 

Movement of provisions
                       

123                    (8,827) 

   Adjusted for working capital changes:
                  

22,964                    (9,298) 

   (Increase)/ Decrease in receivables
                   

(1,242)                     1,496 

   (Increase)/ Decrease in inventory
                       

425                       (500) 

   (Decrease)/Increase in smoothing payables
                       

139                        380 

   (Decrease)/Increase in finance leases
                    

1,082                         (79) 

   (Decrease)/Increase in payables
                  

22,560                  (10,595) 

   Cash generated by operations
              
(156,809)                    24,944 

17 CONTINGENCIES

RESTATED

16  RECONCILIATION OF NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES TO NET DEFICIT

Net Surplus/ (deficit) as per Statement of Financial Performance  (174 606)  51 347 

Adjusted for non-cash items:

Depreciation and Amourtisation  2 926  1 979 

Loss / (Profit) on disposal of Property, plant and equipment   540   57 

Bad debts written off  -   981 

Prior year error adjustments   159  (1 040) 

Allowance for doubtful debts   808  - 

Proceeds from disposal of assets  ( 165)  - 

Proceeds from insurance  ( 7)  ( 40) 

Adjusted for items separately disclosed

Investment Income  (9 710)  (10 305) 

Finance Charges   159   91 

Movement of provisions   123  (8 827) 

Adjusted for working capital changes:  22 964  (9 298) 

  (Increase)/ Decrease in receivables  (1 242)  1 496 

  (Increase)/ Decrease in inventory   425  ( 500) 

   (Decrease)/Increase in smoothing payables   139   380 

   (Decrease)/Increase in finance leases  1 082  ( 79) 

   (Decrease)/Increase in payables  22 560  (10 595) 

Cash generated by operations  (156 809)  24 944 

2013/14
R’000

2014/15
R’000
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  17.1  Legal Cases

The contract of a former executive manager expired on 31st March 2012 and it was not renewed. Was 
awarded by the CCMA an amount to the value of R636,000 and has been paid by SASSETA. Also took SAS-
SETA to Labour Court, the case is pending and the total exposure is R 3,8 million.

SASSETA may be exposed to legal costs amounting to R400,000 in defending its case.

       17.2  First Time Employer registrations
The Skills Development legislation allows for an employer, registering for the first time, 6 months to submit 
an application for mandatory grants. 

At the reporting date it is estimated that, as a result, additional mandatory grant expenditure of R372,000 
(2013/14: R618,000) will be payable. The amount is contingent on the number of submissions received and 
approved. 

17.3  NSF Liability
In terms of the grant regulations, a SETA must have committed or paid 95% of discretionary funds          
available, if not the uncommitted surplus funds will be forfeited to the NSF. As at 31 March 2015, SASSETA 
was over-committed. Refer to note 18.1 and 29 for additional details.

18   COMMITMENTS

The projects will be funded from the discretionary reserve. The discretionary as disclosed in the Statement of 
Financial Position as at 31 March 2015 amounts to R79,7 million. This has resulted in an over-commitment of 
R372,5 million. R192 million has been set-aside in the 2015/16 financial year to ensure financial sustainability of 
the organization. The Administrator has also embarked on an exercise of investigating the projects to ascer-
tain that they comply with the discretionary grants policy, guidelines as published by the Department of Higher 
Education and the applicable laws and regulations. Where non-compliance is identified, necessary steps will be 
taken to bring the commitments level further.

The expenditure that has already been incurred, and as a result included in the discretionary grant expenditure 
in the Statement of Financial Performance, is reflected in the schedule below and has reduced the commitment 
balance of the entity.

Per the new grant regulations, uncommitted surplus in excess of 5% need to be paid over to the National Skills 
Fund by end of August. As the entity is over-stated, there are no uncommitted surplus funds.

Safety and Security Sector Education and Training Authority
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ACCOUNTING POLICIES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

 18.1    Discretionary Reserve
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19 LEASES
Total of future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable leases:

 2014/15 

R’000

 2013/14

R’000 
Operating 

Lease
 Finance 

Lease  Total  Total 

Not later than one year
                          

4,405 
                       

1,228                        5,633  3,482 

Later than one year and 
not later than five years

                          
5,664 

                             
-                          5,664  9,331 

                        
10,069 

                       
1,228                      11,297   12,813 

a) The first operating lease relates to premises used for office accommodation. The lease 
agreement was entered into effective from 01 September 2012 until 31 August 2017. New Lease 
agreement for the new building was entered into 1 September 2014 to 31 March 2016. The leases 
have an escalation clause of 8% effected annually at the anniversary of the lease.

b) Finance leases relates to both photocopy machines and video conferencing machines. The 
lease agreements were entered into in the current financial year and both expiring on the 31 
March 2016.

20
MATERIAL LOSSES THROUGH CRIMINAL CONDUCT, IRREGULAR, FRUITLESS AND 
WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE

20.1 Irregular Expenditure  2014/15 2013/14 
 R’000  R’000 

Opening balance                 42,166  150,875 

Add: Irregular expenditure current year                 12,6011   2,797 

Less: Amounts condoned                (28,467) (47,981)

Less: Prior period errors

 Irregular expenditure relating to the blanket 
approval of the WSPs                                   -     (53,127)

Irregular Expenditure relating to the adminis-
tration expenditure                            -      (10,398)

Irregular expenditure awaiting              condona-
tion

            139,710 
42,166 

Analysis of expenditure awaiting condonation per age classification

Current year
                          

-   
                           

-   

Total
                           

-   
                           

-   

RESTATED

RESTATED

Not later than one year

Later than one year and 
not later than five years

Safety and Security Sector Education and Training Authority
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ACCOUNTING POLICIES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

19.  LEASES

Total of future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable leases:

2014/15
R’000

2013/14
R’000

Operating 
Lease

Finance 
Lease

2014/15 
Total

2013/14 
Total

Not later than one year  4,405  1,228  5,633  3,482 
Later than one year and not 
later than five years

 5,664  -  5,664  9,331 

 10,069  1,228  11,297  12,813 

a) The first operating lease relates to premises used for office accomodation. The lease agree-
ment was entered into effective from 01 September 2012 until 31 August 2017. New Lease 
agreement for the new building was entered into 1 September 2014 to 31 March 2016. The 
leases has an escalation clause of 8% effected annually at the anniversary of the lease.

b) Finance leases relates to both photocopy machines and video conferencing machines. The 
lease agreements were entered into in the current financial yeat and both expiring on the 31 
March 2016.

20.  MATERIAL LOSSES THROUGH CRIMINAL CONDUCT, IRREGULAR, 
FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE

20.1 Irregular Expenditure 2014/15 2013/14
R’000 R’000

Opening balance  42,166  150,875 
Add: Irregular expenditure current year  126,011  2,797 
Less: Amounts condoned  (28 467)  (47 981) 
Less: Prior period errors
    Irregular expenditure relating to the blanket approval of the   
W WSPs

 -  (53 127) 

    Irregular Expenditure relating to the administration             
exp expenditure

 -  (10 398) 

Irregular expenditure awaiting condonation  139,710  42,166 
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Details of Irregular Expenditure-Current Year

Incident
The services were procured without following the tender pro-
cess                      12,229 

The documented reasons for single sourcing not justifiable
                          

783 

No evidence that expenditure was procured without sourcing 
the required number of quotations                             30 

Extension granted without documenting 
reasons thereof and obtaining the necessary 
approval from the necessary authority

                            
60 

                             
-   

Irregular expenditure incurred on a blanket 
approval for the submission of WSPs for the 
year 2012/13 

                          

10.5% administration budget exceeded
                     

24,993 

Irregularities identified in the discretionary projects due to 
contracts not fully signed by all the parties

                     
87,169 

                   
126,011 

Included in the balance above is as follows:

Irregular expenditure as a result of the blanket approval of the extension for the submission date:

ReRelating to the 2012/13 financial year
                     

11,617 

    Relating to the 2013/14 financial year due to payments for    
t   the 2012 scheme year as a result of the above

                       
2,083 

    Relating to the 2014/15 financial year also relating to the  2  

2  2012 scheme year. Awaiting condonation from the Minister of      
Hi Higher Education.

                          
585 

Other procurement non-compliances as identified in the 
current financial year

                     
13,103 

10.5% administration budget exceeded                      
24,993 

Irregularities identified in the discretionary projects due to 
contracts not fully signed by all the parties

                     
87,169 

                   
139,711 

783

60

585 

11,617

2,083

585 

13,103 

24,993 

87,169 

24,993 

87,169

126,011

                   
139,711 

2014/15
R’000

Details of Irregular Expenditure - Current Year

Incident

The services were procurred without following the tender process  12 229
 

The documented reasons for single sourcing not justifiable   783
 

No evidence that expenditure was procurred without sourcing the required number 
of quotations

  30

 
Extension granted without documenting reasons thereof and obtaining the neces-
sary approval from the necessary authority

  60

 
Irregular expenditure incurred on a blanket approval for the submission of WSPs 
for the year 2012/13 

  585 

10.5% administration budget exceeded
 25 155 

Irregularities identified in the discretionary projects due to contracts not fully 
signed by all the parties

 87 169 

 126,011 

Included in the balance above is the following (Irregular ependiture awaiting condone-
ment):

Irregular expenditure as a result of the blanket approval of the extension for the submission 
date:
    Relating to the 2012/13 financial year  11 617 
    Relating to the 2013/14 financial year due to payments for the 2012 scheme 
yeyear as a result of the above

 2 083 

    Relating to the 2014/15 financial year also due the 2012 scheme year approval   585 

Other procurement non-compliances as identified in the current financial year  13 103 
10.5% administration budget exceeded  25 155 

Irregularities identified in the discretionary projects due to contracts not fully 
signed by all the parties

 87 169 

 139,711 



SASSETA  ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015 94

Safety and Security Sector Education and Training Authority
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ACCOUNTING POLICIES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

           20.2  Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Scheduled staff training were not attended by the number of scheduled 
attendees. The amount paid to the training providers regarding the total 
numbers of employees that did not attend is regarded as fruitless and 
wasteful expenditure.

                            72 

Projects awarded at amounts higher than the rates approved per the DG 
policy.

                     24,380 

Provider closed it doors prior to completion of an internship and the 
learners were taken into a new programme

                       1,163 

25,616

          20.3  Matters under investigation
The projects disclosed in note 20.1 as irregular expenditure and 20.2 as fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure are under investigation.

           21   EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE
One Senior Manager’s contract expired on the 31st March 2015 and was not renewed. The Senior 
Manager has since referred the matter to the CCMA.

A manager was under suspension during the financial year and has been acquitted at the case at 
the CCMA. The organization is to re-imburse her legal fees and a provision of R350,000 has been 
included in the administration expenditure.

The Labour Court case as disclosed in note 20.1 has since been finalized. The Labour Court ruled 
in favour of SASETA.

          22    CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
In the application of the Seta’s accounting policies management is required to make judgements, esti-
mates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily appar-
ent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience 
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that 
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future 
periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation un-
certainty at the balance sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The Seta reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at 
the end of each annual reporting period, refer note 7 for the respective carrying values. The Seta is 
currently established until 31 March 2016.
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        23  PRIOR YEAR ERRORS

The prior period error arose due to incomplete recording of administration expenditure for the 2013/14 financial 
year. The current year financial statements have been adjusted through the prior period journals that had the 
effect of correcting the comparative figures.

The adjustment on the depreciation was due to re-assessment of the useful life of the assets. This has resulted 
in accumulated depreciation amounting to R181,000 being reversed and annual increment of R52,000 being 
realized. Accumulated impairment amounting to R265,000 was reversed and the annual increment in amortisa-
tion of R70,000 being realised.

The effect on the comparative figures is as follows:

Impact on the Statement of Financial Performance
Administration Expenditure 159

Impact on the Statement of Financial Position
Retained Surplus (375)

Accounts Payables (73)

Property, plant and Equipment 93

Intangible Assets 195

        24   FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

In the course of the Seta operations it is exposed to credit, liquidity and market risk.  The Seta has developed a 
comprehensive risk strategy in terms of Treasury Regulations 28.1 in order to monitor and control these risks.  
The risk management process relating to each of these risks is discussed under the headings below. 

Interest rate risk

The Seta manages its interest rate risk by effectively investing Seta surplus cash in term deposits with different 
financial institutions according to the Seta’s investment policy.

The Seta’s exposure to interest rate risk and the effective interest rates on financial instruments at reporting 
sheet date are as follows:

Floating rate  Non-interest bearing            Total              
      Amount                                       
R       R’000 Amount               

R’000
     Effective 
interest rate 

   Amount               
       R’000

 
 

 
                   124 

769 6.00%                    124,769 

Trade and other payables from exchange           
t   transactions                               -                     1,441                    1,441 41,145

 Total finanTotal cial 
assets 

                   124 
769                     1,441                126,210 

 Year ended 31 March 2014 
 Assets 

Floating rate Non-interest bearing Total
Amount               

R’000
Effective 

interest rate
Amount               

       R’000
Amount               

       R’000

124 769 6.00% - 124,769

- 1,441 - 1,441

124 769 1,441 - 126,210

Year ended 31 March 2015

Assets

Cash

Accounts receivable

Total financial asset

41,145

41,145 41,145

41,14541,145--

- -

Trade and other payables   
ro from exchange transactions

Total financial liabilities
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Details of Irregular Expenditure-Current Year

Incident

The services were procured without following the tender process
                     

12,229 

The documented reasons for single sourcing not justifiable
                          

783 

No evidence that expenditure was procured without sourcing the required 
number of quotations

                            
30 

Extension granted without documenting 
reasons thereof and obtaining the necessary 
approval from the necessary authority

                            
60 

                             
-   

Irregular expenditure incurred on a blanket 
approval for the submission of WSPs for the 
year 2012/13 

                          
585 

10.5% administration budget exceeded
                     

24,993 

Irregularities identified in the discretionary projects due to 
contracts not fully signed by all the parties

                     
87,169 

                   
126,011 

Included in the balance above is as follows:

Irregular expenditure as a result of the blanket approval of the extension for the submis-
sion date:

 - relating to the 2012/13 financial year
                     

11,617 

 - relating to the 2013/14 financial year due to payments for 
the 2012 scheme year as a result of the above

                       
2,083 

 - relating to the 2014/15 financial year also relating to the 
2012 scheme year. Awaiting condonation from the Minister 
of Higher Education.

                          
585 

Other procurement non-compliances as identified in the 
current financial year

                     
13,103 

10.5% administration budget exceeded
                     

24,993 

Irregularities identified in the discretionary projects due to 
contracts not fully signed by all the parties

                     
87,169 

                   
139,711 

  Cash 
                   
275 139   6.00%                                         275,139 

  Accounts receivable  
                   3,252 

                   3,252 

     Total financial assets 
                  
275 139 

                    
3,252                278,391 

     Trade and other payables  
from exchange transactions

                               
- 

                           
-                              -   

                                                            
-                            - 

The SETA limits its counter - party exposure by only dealing with well established financial institutions approved by 
National Treasury. The SETA’s exposure is continuously monitored by the Accounting Authority. Credit risk in respect of 
South African Revenue Services (SARS) is limited as it is a government entity of sound reputation.

Credit risk with respect to levy paying employers is limited due to the nature of the income received. The SETA’s con-
centration of credit risk is limited to the Safety and Security sector in which it operates. No events occurred in the Safety 
and Security industry during the financial period that may have an impact on the accounts receivable that has not been 
adequately provided for. The SETA is exposed to a limited concentration of the credit risk, as significant amounts are 
owed by SARS. This concentration of risk is limited, as SARS is a government entity with a good reputation.

The ageing of trade and other receivables (exchange):

Impair-
ment

           

       Not past due
                               

-   
                              

-   
                           

-                               -   

       Past due 0 - 30 days                                                           
-                                                       -                          

       Past due 31 - 90 days
                                                            

-                                                    -   

       Past due 90 and above
                       

2,036                                                                           -   

     

                                                                       
3,251                            -   

The SETA managed to limit its treasury counter-party exposure by only dealing with well established financial institutions 
approved by National Treasury through the approval of our investment policy in terms of Treasury Regulations. The 
SETA’s exposure is continuously monitored by the finance committee. Credit risk with respect to levy paying employers 
is limited due to the nature of the income received. The SETA does not any material exposure to any individual or count-
er-party. The SETA’s concentration of credit risk is limited to the industry (Safety and Security industries) in which the 
SETA operates. No events occurred in the industry during the financial year that may have an impact on the accounts 
receivables that has not been adequately provided for.

Credit risk

Safety and Security Sector Education and Training Authority
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ACCOUNTING POLICIES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015
Year ended                                    
31 March 2014 Floating rate Non-interest bearing Total

Amount               
R’000

Effective interest 
rate

Amount               
       R’000

Amount               
       R’000

275 139 6.00% - 275,139

- 3,252 - 3,252

275 139 3,252 - 278,391

22,105 22,105

22,105 22,105

 Impairment

I2,202 (762) 3,251

--

-

-

-

-

-

Trade and other payables  
from exchange transactions

Total financial  liabilities - -

                   2013/14                   2014/15

 Impairment Gross Gross 

278

1,381

1,592

143

(762) 

23

2,036
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 Cash                    
275 139 6.00%                           

-                  275,139 

 Accounts 
receivable  

                   
3,252                    3,252 

 Total financial 
assets 

                  
275 139 

                    
3,252                278,391 

 Total financial 
liabilities 

                               
- 

                           
-                              -   

                               
- 

                           
-                            - 

The SETA limits its counter - party exposure by only dealing with well established financial institutions approved 
by National Treasury. The SETA’s exposure is continuously monitored by the Accounting Authority. Credit risk in 
respect of South African Revenue Services (SARS) is limited as it is a government entity of sound reputation.

Credit risk with respect to levy paying employers is limited due to the nature of the income received. The SETA’s 
concentration of credit risk is limited to the Safety and Security sector in which it operates. No events occurred 
in the Safety and Security industry during the financial period that may have an impact on the accounts receiv-
able that has not been adequately provided for. The SETA is exposed to a limited concentration of the credit risk, 
as significant amounts are owed by SARS. This concentration of risk is limited, as SARS is a government entity 
with a good reputation.

The ageing of trade and other receivables (exchange):

2014/15  2013/14 
Gross Impair-

ment
 Gross 

Not past due
                               
-   

                              
-   

                           
-                               -   

Past due 0 - 30 days
                          
143 

                               
-   

                       
278                             -   

Past due 31 - 90 days
                            
23 

                               
-   

                    
1,381                             -   

Past due 90 and above
                       
2,036 

                         
-762 

                    
1,592                             -   

     

                       
2,202 

                         
(-762) 

                    
3,251 

                           
-   

The SETA managed to limit its treasury counter-party exposure by only dealing with well established financial 
institutions approved by National Treasury through the approval of our investment policy in terms of Treasury 
Regulations. The SETA’s exposure is continuously monitored by the finance committee. Credit risk with respect 
to levy paying employers is limited due to the nature of the income received. The SETA does not any material 
exposure to any individual or counter-party. The SETA’s concentration of credit risk is limited to the industry 
(Safety and Security industries) in which the SETA operates. No events occurred in the industry during the finan-
cial year that may have an impact on the accounts receivables that has not been adequately provided for.

Credit risk
Financial assets which potentially subject the Seta to the risk of non performance by counter parties 
and thereby subject the SETA to credit concentration of credit risk, consist mainly of cash and cash 
equivalents, investments and accounts receivable.   

Safety and Security Sector Education and Training Authority
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ACCOUNTING POLICIES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015The Seta manage its treasury counter-party exposure by only dealing with well-established financial institutions 

approved by National Treasury. The Seta’s exposure is continuously monitored by the Chief financial Officer.

Credit risk with respect to levy paying employers is limited due to the nature of the income received. The SETA 
does not have any material exposure to any individual or counter-party. The SETA’s concentration of credit risk 
is limited to the industry (Policing, Security, Legal, Corrections, and the Justice department) in which the Seta 
operates.  No events occurred in the industry (Policing, Security, Legal, Corrections, and Justice department) 
during the financial year that may have an impact on the accounts receivable that has not been adequately pro-
vided for.  Accounts receivable are presented net of allowance for doubtful debt.

The ageing of cash and cash Equivalents:

2014/15                              2013/14 
Gross Impairment   

Not past due
               
124 769 

                          
- 

             
275139 

 

   -   

     

Trade and other receivables are all considered for impairment. No impairment charge was raised in the current 
year (2014: Nil) as management, based on its review is convinced that receivables are all collectable. 

It is the policy of the SETA to raise a 100% impairment charge where management believes there is doubt about 
collectability. 

Liquidity risk
The Seta manages liquidity risk through proper management of working capital, capital expenditure 
and actual vs. forecasted cash flows and its cash management policy.  Adequate reserves and 
liquid resources are also maintained. In case of liquidity problems funding resources are available 
in terms of DHET and National Treasury approval for borrowing requirements in the open market.

Market risk
The Seta is exposed to fluctuations in the employment market for example sudden increases in 
unemployment and changes in the wage rates.  No significant events occurred during the year that 
the Seta is aware of. 

Fair values
The Seta’s financial instruments consist mainly of cash and cash equivalents, account and other 
receivables, and account and other payables.  No financial instruments were carried at an amount 
in excess of its fair value.  The following methods and assumptions are used to determine the fair 
value of each class of financial instrument:

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the Seta and short-term bank deposits with an 
original maturity of three months or less. The carrying amount of these assets approximates their 
fair value.

The Seta manage its treasury counter-party exposure by only dealing with well-established financial institutions 
approved by National Treasury. The Seta’s exposure is continuously monitored by the Chief financial Officer.

Credit risk

    275 139

2014/15 2013/14
Gross

124 769

impairment

          -

Gross Impairment 

-
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The Seta manage its treasury counter-party exposure by only dealing with well-established financial institutions 
approved by National Treasury. The Seta’s exposure is continuously monitored by the Chief financial Officer.

Credit risk with respect to levy paying employers is limited due to the nature of the income received. The SETA 
does not have any material exposure to any individual or counter-party. The SETA’s concentration of credit risk 
is limited to the industry (Policing, Security, Legal, Corrections, and the Justice department) in which the Seta 
operates.  No events occurred in the industry (Policing, Security, Legal, Corrections, and Justice department) 
during the financial year that may have an impact on the accounts receivable that has not been adequately 
provided for.  Accounts receivable are presented net of allowance for doubtful debt.

The ageing of cash and cash Equivalents:

2014/15                              2013/14 
Gross Impairment  Gross  Impairment 

Not past due                
124 769 

                          
- 

             
275 139     -   

     

 Trade and other receivables are all considered for impairment. No impairment charge was raised in the current 
year (2014: Nil) as management, based on its review is convinced that receivables are all collectable. 

 It is the policy of the SETA to raise a 100% impairment charge where management believes there is doubt 
about collectability. 

Liquidity risk
The Seta manages liquidity risk through proper management of working capital, capital expenditure 
and actual vs. forecasted cash flows and its cash management policy.  Adequate reserves and 
liquid resources are also maintained. In case of liquidity problems funding resources are available 
in terms of DHET and National Treasury approval for borrowing requirements in the open market.

Market risk
The Seta is exposed to fluctuations in the employment market for example sudden increases in 
unemployment and changes in the wage rates.  No significant events occurred during the year that 
the Seta is aware of. 

Fair values
The Seta’s financial instruments consist mainly of cash and cash equivalents, account and other 
receivables, and account and other payables.  No financial instruments were carried at an amount 
in excess of its fair value.  The following methods and assumptions are used to determine the fair 
value of each class of financial instrument:

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the Seta and short-term bank deposits with an 
original maturity of three months or less. The carrying amount of these assets approximates their 
fair value.

Safety and Security Sector Education and Training Authority
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Accounts receivable

The carrying amount of accounts receivable is net of allowance for any doubtful debt, estimated by the accounting 
authority based on prior experience. The carrying amount of these assets approximates their fair value.

Investments

The fair value of debt securities is determined using the discounted cash flow method (only if applicable). The fair 
value of publicly traded investments is based on quoted market prices for those investments.

Borrowings

The fair value of interest-bearing borrowings is based on the quoted market price for the same or similar issues 
or on the current rates available for debt with the same maturity profile and effective interest rate with similar cash 
flows (only if applicable). The fair value of the interest-bearing borrowings with variable interest rates approximates 
their carrying amounts.

Accounts payable

The carrying amount of account and other payables approximates fair value due to the relatively short-
term maturity of these financial liabilities.

The aging of trade and other payables (exchange):

2014/15                      2013/14 
      Gross                 Gross               Impairment

Not past due                                  
-            -   

Past due 0 - 30 days
                                  

38,981 
                                

-   18,906 

Past due  31-90 days
                                                                    

-      2,155 

Past due 90 an above
                                                           

-          881 

    

                                                         
-               

Impairment

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

- -
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2014/15

447

41,145 21,942

1,717
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Accounts receivable
The carrying amount of accounts receivable is net of allowance for any doubtful debt, estimated by the 
accounting authority based on prior experience. The carrying amount of these assets approximates their fair 
value.

Investments
The fair value of debt securities is determined using the discounted cash flow method (only if applicable). The 
fair value of publicly traded investments is based on quoted market prices for those investments.

Borrowings

The fair value of interest-bearing borrowings is based on the quoted market price for the same or similar issues 
or on the current rates available for debt with the same maturity profile and effective interest rate with similar cash 
flows (only if applicable). The fair value of the interest-bearing borrowings with variable interest rates approximates 
their carrying amounts.

Accounts payable

The carrying amount of account and other payables approximates fair value due to the relatively short-
term maturity of these financial liabilities.

The aging of trade and other payables (exchange):

2014/15  2013/14 
Gross Impairment        Gross 

Not past due
                                 

-   

                   -   

 

Past due 0 - 30 days

                        
38,981 

                                
-   

                     18,906 

 

Past due  31-90 days

                             
447 

                                
-   

                       2,155 

 

Past due 90 an above

                          
1,717 

                                
-   

                          881 

 

    

                        
41,145 

                                
-                        21,942 

      25 .1  Transactions with other SETA’s 

The SETA has, in the normal course of its operations, entered into certain transactions with entities which had a 
nominated representative serving on the SETA accounting authority.

2014/15 2014/15          2013/14 2013/14
R’000 R’000           R’000 R’000

Transfers in/
(out) during 

the year

Receiv-
able / 
(Pay-
ables)

Transfers in/
(out) during 

the year

Receivable /

  (Payables)

The balances at year-end included in receivables and payables are:

INSETA
                                  

- 
                               

-                                                                       - 

FASSET
                               

17 
                               

-                                                                    2 

BANKSETA
                                  

- 
                               

-                                                                    27 

SERVICESSETA
                               

72 
                               

-                                                                    - 

Total
                               

88 
                             

-   
                                           

81                                    29 

       25.2  Remuneration of Accounting Authority 

The key management personnel (as defined by IPSAS 20, Related Party Disclosures) of the SETA are:  the mem-
bers of the accounting authority and the members of the senior management group. 

The accounting authority consists of members appointed in terms of its constitution. Senior Managers attend meet-
ings of the accounting authority but is not a member of the accounting authority. The aggregate remuneration of 
members of the Accounting Authority and the number of members receiving remuneration within this category, are:  

2014/15 2013/14
R’000 R’000

Aggregate remuneration
                       

1,785 
                    

2,371 

Number of persons 14 14

The fees above were paid to the accounting authority members for their attedance of meeting in the Board and and 
its sub-committees. 

25.3  Remuneration of Key Management 

The senior management group consists of the Administrator, Chief executive officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief 
Operating Officer and Senior Managers of Corporate Services, Skills Implementation and Skills Research and 
Administration. The aggregate remuneration of members of the senior management group and the number of man-
agers receiving remuneration within this category are:

 
2014/15 2013/14
R’000 R’000

Aggregate remuneration
                       

8,013 
                    

3,058 

Number of persons 8 6

81

Receivable / 
(Payables)

Transfers in/(out) 
during the year

Receivable/  
(Payables)

INSETA

INSETA

BANKSETA

SERVICESSETA

                          -                         -                                81                                  -

                         17                       -                                 -                                   2

                          -                         -                                 -                                  27         

                          72                      -                                 -                                   -                                                   

25. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All related party transactions disclosed are at arm’s length and shown below for disclosure.  
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25 Transactions with stakeholders represented on the accounting authority

The SETA has, in the normal course of its operations, entered into 
certain transactions with entities which had a nominated represen-
tative serving on the SETA accounting authority.

2014/15 2014/15 2013/14 2013/14
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Transfers in/
(out) during 

the year

Receiv-
able / 
(Pay-
ables)

Transfers 
in/(out) 

during the 
year

Receivable / (Payables)

The balances at year-end included in receivables and payables are:

INSETA
                                  

- 
                               

- 
                            

81                                - 

FASSET
                               

17 
                               

- 
                               

-                               2 

BANKSETA
                                  

- 
                               

- 
                               

-                             27 

SERVICESSETA
                               

72 
                               

- 
                               

-                                - 

Total
                               

88 
                             

-   
                            

81                             29 

26 Remuneration of Key Management

The key management personnel (as defined by IPSAS 20, Related Party Disclosures) of the SETA are:  the mem-
bers of the accounting authority and the members of the senior management group. 

The accounting authority consists of members appointed in terms of its constitution. Senior Managers attend meet-
ings of the accounting authority but is not a member of the accounting authority. The aggregate remuneration of 
members of the Accounting Authority and the number of members receiving remuneration within this category, are:  

2014/15 2013/14
R’000 R’000

Aggregate remuneration
                       

1,785 
                    

2,371 

Number of persons 14 14

The fees above were paid to the accounting authority members for their atten-
dance of meeting in the Board, EXCO and Chambers. 

The senior management group consists of the Administrator, Chief executive officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief 
Operating Officer and Senior Managers of Corporate Services, Skills Implementation and Skills Research and 
Administration. The aggregate remuneration of members of the senior management group and the number of man-
agers receiving remuneration within this category are:

2014/15 2013/14
R’000 R’000

Aggregate remuneration
                       

8,013 
                    

3,058 

Number of persons 8 6
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27 NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Effective date Expected impact

Segment Reporting

Transfers of functions between 
entities under common control 

Transfers of functions between 
entities not under common 
control 

Mergers 

GRAP 18

GRAP 105

GRAP 106

GRAP 107

01 April 2015

01 April 2015

01 April 2015

01 April 2015

No significant impact on 
future disclosures

No significant impact on 
future disclosuresThe effective dates for the standards below has not yet been determined:

Service Concession Arrangements: Grantor GRAP 32
Not yet  deter-

mined
Statutory Receivables GRAP 108

    27  STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET TO ACTUAL AMOUNTS 

Note:  The Budget and the accounting basis adopted by SASSETA are the same. The Statement of Comparison of the 
Budget and Actual Amounts is depicted on page 66 in the annual financial statements.

Below are the detailed explanations for variances:

27.1      The budget is approved on an accrual basis by functional classification. The approved budget 
covers the fiscal period from 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015.

27.2      Skills development income - The amount per budget approximates the actual amount received. 
The variance noted is R4 million which is insignificant.

27.3      Other Income - The revenue generated by the certificates was significantly lower than anticipated. 
There was a lesser number of firearm certificates printed. Regarding the investment income, the 
amount is a reflection of the budget amount resulting in a 1% variance.

        26   NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, there are Standards and Interpretations issue and effec-
tive dates determined to be 01 April 2015 by the Minister of Finance as published in the Government Gazette No. 
37820 published on the 10th July 2014.

Mergers GRAP 107

01 April 2015

01 April 2015

No significant impact 
on future disclosures

No significant impact 
on future disclosures

Safety and Security Sector Education and Training Authority
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015
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27 NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Effective date Expected impact

27 NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, there are Standards and Interpretations issue and effec-
tive dates determined to be 01 April 2015 by the Minister of Finance as published in the Government Gazette No. 
37820 published on the 10th July 2014.

27.4      The employer grant expenditure is 12% below the budgeted amount. This is due to lower sub-
mission rate of the WSPs and queries not resolved timeously resulting in the employer grant 
monies being transferred to discretionary reserves per legislative requirements. This is a require-
ment per the grant regulations effective 01 April 2013.

27.5      The discretionary grants expenditure is 108% more than budgeted. This was triggered by the 
over-commitment in the skills development projects. Funds have however been set-aside in the 
2015/16 financial year to address this over-commitment.

27.6      Administration expenditure is 23% below budget. Due to the new requirements that the levies 
received directly from the departments within the sector should be split one-third towards ad-
ministration and two-thirds towards discretionary grants projects has resulted in SASSETA being 
prudent about classification of expenditure as well.

27.7     The deficit is 1 064% more than budgeted. SASSETA applied for approval to budget for a deficit-
The higher deficit was driven higher expenditure on the discretionary grants expenditure.

29 GOING CONCERN 
         
 
 
  
                   
 

The entity has budgeted for R550 million for the 2015/16 financial year. This is 78% more than the levies received 
in  the 2014/15 financial year. This is based on the various discussions held with the National Departments, Na-
tional Treasury, Department of Higher Education and the Department of Public Service & Administration regarding 
receipt of these levies, who some of them have illustrated the willingness to pay-over the  additional levies to 
SASSETA like SAPS (which is a large contributor).
The levy amount affected by the factors above amounts to R230 million. This resulted in SASSETA being able to 
set aside R192 million to address the prior year over-commitments balance.
Based on discussions held thus far, projects for the 2015/16 will be monitored and implemented in line with levy 
contributions.

SASSETA is already in advanced discussions with other stakeholders to enter into co-funding agreements to ad-
dress sect oral needs, which will result in significant cost savings, i.e. private security firms.

There are an ongoing projects investigation which have identified contracts that can be cancelled which will result 
in ffurther savings for the organization. The investigation will be extended to enable further identification of projects 
to be cancelled due to non-compliances tto the terms and conditions of the contracts – alreadyover R20 million has 
been identified within such a short period of time when the investigation started.

The risks that SASSETA may be challenged in court are further by the fact that terms and conditions included in 
thecontracts are in SASSETA’s favour. The conditions referred to stipulates that SASSETA reserves the right to 
alter the contract amount should it discover that the awarded amount is incorrect / inaccurate.

The contracts with the departments are to be awarded based on condition that levies per the DPSA directive will 
be transferred to SASSETA as required.

GOING CONCERN28

The entity is over-committed however the following interventions have been put in place to ensure that the 
entity is  financially sustainable:

A)    BUDGET

B)     CO-FUNDING INITIATIVES

C)      CONTRACTS CANCELLATIONS

D)     NEW AWARDS

The conditions included are another measure to ensure that the commitments balance is maintained to the entity’s 
discretionary grants reserves.
These measures will ensure that the over-commitment is drastically reduced as at 31 March 2016.

E)      ADDITIONAL FUNDING
         Advanced discussions have also been held with other state organizations like National Skills Fund where           
additiadditional  funds are being sourced to increase the revenue over and above the R550 million.

F)     COST SAVING MEASURES
        Various cost saving measures have been introduced to reduce the Administration related costs that cut across all   
the   the organization including Water & Electricity, Leases, Maintenance, Security, Travel, Telephone, etc.
        We are quite confident that these measures will be able to address any potential shortfall that maybe result  
from   non-receipt of all income from the departments. It is worth remembering that the commitments balances consist 
of   multi-year contracts that are not all due on or before 31 March 2016, which reduces the potential exposure and the 
funding gap.   

Various cost saving measures have been introduced to reduce the Administration related costs that cut across 
all the organization including Water & Electricity, Leases, Maintenance, Security, Travel, Telephone, etc. We 
are quite confident that these measures will be able to address any potential shortfall that maybe result  from   
non-receipt of all income from the departments. It is worth remembering that the commitments balances consist 
of   multi-year contracts that are not all due on or before 31 March 2016, which reduces the potential exposure 
and the funding gap.
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Segment Reporting

Transfers of func-
tions between enti-
ties under common 
control 

Transfers of 
functions between 
entities not under 
common control 

Mergers 

GRAP 18

GRAP 105

GRAP 106

GRAP 107

01 April 
2015

01 April 
2015

01 April 
2015

01 April 
2015

No significant impact on 
future disclosures

No significant impact on 
future disclosures

The effective dates for the standards below has not yet been determined:

Service Conces-
sion Arrangements: 
Grantor

GRAP 32

Not yet de-
termined

Statutory Receiv-
ables

GRAP 108

28 STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET TO ACTUAL AMOUNTS 

Note: The Budget and the accounting basis adopted by SASSETA are the same. The Statement of Comparison 
of the Budget and Actual Amounts is depicted on page xxxxx in the annual financial statements.

Below are the detailed explanations for variances:

28.1    The budget is approved on an accrual basis by functional classification. The approved budget covers the 
fiscal period from 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014.

28.2    Skills development income - The amount per budget approximates the actual amount received. The vari-
ance noted is R4 million which is insignificant.

28.3    Other Income - The revenue generated by the certificates was significantly lower than anticipated. There 
was a lesser number of firearm certificates printed. Regarding the investment income, the amount is a 
reflection of the budget amount resulting in a 1% variance.

28.4    The employer grant expenditure is 12% below the budgeted amount. This is due to lower submission 
rate of the WSPs and queries not resolved timeously resulting in the employer grant monies being 
transferred to discretionary reserves per legislative requirements. This is a requirement per the grant 
regulations effective 01 April 2013.

28.5    The discretionary grants expenditure is 108% more than budgeted. This was triggered by the over-com-
mitment in the skills development projects. Funds have however been set-aside in the 2015/16 financial 
year to address this over-commitment.

28.6    Administration expenditure is 23% below budget. Due to the new requirements that the levies received 
directly from the departments within the sector should be split one-third towards administration and 
two-thirds towards discretionary grants projects has resulted in SASSETA being prudent about classifi-
cation of expenditure as well.
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29 GOING CONCERN 
         
 
The entity is over-committed however the following interventions have been put in place to ensure that the entity is finan-
cially sustainable: 
  
                   
 
 A) BUDGET

•   The entity has budgeted for R550 million for the 2015/16 financial year. This is 78% more than the levies received in 
the 2014/15 financial year. 
     This is based on the various discussions held with the National Departments, National Treasury, Department of High-
er Education and the Department of Public Service &
     Administration regarding receipt of these levies, who some of them have illustrated the willingness to pay-over the 
additional levies to SASSETA like SAPS (which is a 
     large contributor).
•    The levy amount affected by the factors above amounts to R230 million. This resulted in SASSETA being able to set 
aside R192 million to address the prior year over-
     commitments balance.
•   Based on discussions held thus far, projects for the 2015/16 will be monitored and implemented in line with levy 
contributions.

B) CO-FUNDING INITIATIVES

•   SASSETA is already in advanced discussions with other stakeholders to enter into co-funding agreements to address 
sect oral needs, which will result in significant cost 
     savings, i.e. private security firms.

C) CONTRACTS CANCELLATIONS

•   There are an ongoing projects investigation which have identified contracts that can be cancelled which will result in 
further savings for the organization. 
     The investigation will be extended to enable further identification of projects to be cancelled due to non-compliances 
to the terms and conditions of the contracts – already
     over R20 million has been identified within such a short period of time when the investigation started.

•   The risks that SASSETA may be challenged in court are further by the fact that terms and conditions included in the 
contracts are in SASSETA’s favour. 
     The conditions referred to stipulates that SASSETA reserves the right to alter the contract amount should it discover 
that the awarded amount is incorrect / inaccurate.

D) NEW AWARDS
• The contracts with the departments are to be awarded based on condition that levies per the DPSA directive will be 
transferred to SASSETA as required.


